DBOPC Meeting 01/25/2024

2	
3	
4	
5	
6	
7	
8	
9	CITY OF DETROIT
10	BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS
11	VIRTUAL MEETING
12	January 25, 2024 at 3:00 P.M.
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	

1

- 2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good afternoon. It is now 3:00
- 3 PM and so we will begin this Thursday, January 25th, 2024
- 4 Board of Police Commissioner's meeting. And so noting
- 5 that we are short one individual for a quorum, though, I
- 6 believe that Commissioner Burton is on his way, we can
- 7 move forward with our amended agenda. But either way it's
- 8 always appropriate to begin with word of invocation. And
- 9 so we're so grateful to be joined today by Zoom with
- 10 Chaplain Irvin. And so Chaplain Irvin, you can go right
- 11 ahead.
- 12 CHAPLAIN IRVING: Amen. Well, Heavenly Father, we
- 13 thank you for this day. We thank you and lift up before
- 14 you, our Mayor and his executive team. We lift up our
- 15 Chief today, and his executive officers and the many
- 16 officers that are protecting our city on this day.
- 17 Father, we lift up the Board of Commissioners before you
- 18 today, and ask that you would allow them to have a
- 19 productive meeting, that you will cover them, that you
- 20 will keep them, that you would allow them to take care of
- 21 the business at hand. And Father, we just pray for their
- 22 safety and pray for their continued blessings. And just
- 23 lift up this city before you today and ask that you will
- 24 have your way and we will give you all the glory, honor
- 25 and praise in Jesus' name. Amen.



- 1 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Amen. Thank you so very much
- 2 for your words of invocation. And so at this moment,
- 3 again, noting we yet don't have a quorum, we'll move
- 4 forward with announcements. And we'll have someone from
- 5 our staff to provide us with our announcements today. Mr.
- 6 Brown.
- 7 MR. BROWN: Yes, sir. Good afternoon, Mr. Chair. Our
- 8 announcement. The next BOPC regular meeting will be
- 9 February 1st at 3:00 PM here at Detroit Public Safety
- 10 Headquarters. Our next community meeting is Thursday,
- 11 February 8th at 6:30 PM with our 11th Precinct hosting.
- 12 And that location is forthcoming. The monthly committee
- 13 meeting scheduled for the month of February, 2024, Policy
- 14 Committee Meeting would meet Tuesday, February 6th, 2024
- 15 at 5:00 PM, and Citizens Complaint Committee Meeting will
- 16 meet Tuesday, February 27th, 2024 at 5:00 PM. All
- 17 committee meetings are held here at Detroit Public Safety
- 18 Headquarters, and Mr. Chair, those other announcements.
- 19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. You can go right
- 20 ahead with in-coming correspondences.
- MR. BROWN: Yes, sir. Mr. Chair, currently there are
- 22 about 4 correspondence, 3 correspondence on the report.
- 23 As of today, you have two news, article one from the
- 24 Detroit News article listed 1/19/2024. And the other one
- 25 you have a WXYZ article listed 1/20/24, which is also in



- 1 your package. And then there's a specification report
- 2 regarding freeway, cameras, PowerPoint that I believe
- 3 Commissioner Bernard would go over doing her committee
- 4 report. And Mr. Chair, those are all the incoming
- 5 correspondence.
- 6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All right. Thank you. And so,
- 7 having dealt with what we can in our amended agenda,
- 8 we'll have public comment quite early in the meeting. But
- 9 because of our promise to the community about the
- 10 timeframe we may have two segments of that public
- 11 comment. And so who do we have currently?
- MS. UNDERWOOD: Mr. Chair. We have 3 people in the
- 13 audience. First person we'll have is Ms. Sharnita
- 14 Williams, Ruebin X and Minister Eric Blount.
- MS. WILLIAMS: Oh, you guys ready for me?
- MS. UNDERWOOD: Yes, ma'am.
- MS. WILLIAMS: Okay. Great. Hello there everyone.
- 18 It's been 800 days. 800 days that my life has been upside
- 19 down. So I've been coming here for like the last 9
- 20 months. Now, I've been trying to figure out how are all
- 21 these people stalking me. And it's genius the way some of
- 22 these Detroit police officers are participating in all
- 23 this social media stuff. This incident occurred 2 weeks
- 24 ago on Randolph and Cadillac. Patrol Car 225141, Randolph
- 25 and Cadillac Square, at 8:55. He was in his patrol car,



- 1 his window was down, and he took a picture of me. So
- 2 later after that, people started, you know, following me
- 3 like they normally do, like I'm Pokémon, and for some
- 4 reason, they prey on people that's fortunate and not
- 5 enough financial situation, offering them cash app, and
- 6 gift cards to continue to follow me on the bus. My car
- 7 been a pound almost two months. Like I said, last week,
- 8 the Transit Police pulled me over, and how was that
- 9 possible when they don't even deal with vehicles? The
- 10 issue I have with all these illegal activities with
- 11 police officers. I cannot say the entire 2000 police
- 12 officers. My life should never be in this situation. And
- 13 like I call you guys on this Board of Commissioners, seat
- 14 warmers because you all are just sitting there and not
- 15 doing your job. And I am entitled to my opinion, like I
- 16 said, especially when I'm in this situation. And I should
- 17 never have been in this situation. And like I said, when
- 18 you guys conspired to cover up a crime, it's conspiracy.
- 19 That's the bottom line.
- 20 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. I don't see Mr.
- 21 Ruebin X in the room, so we'll go with Minister Blount.
- 22 MINISTER BLOUNT: Good afternoon Board. I'm Minister
- 23 Eric Blount from Sacred Heart Catholic Church here in
- 24 Detroit. It never ceases to amaze me the depth of
- 25 corruption on this Board. And you knew Commissioners,



- 1 your silence is the betrayal. All we have to do is look
- 2 at the facial recognition technology reports. They really
- 3 don't say much, but that is such a lethal tool of
- 4 institutional racism. This week, this Police Department,
- 5 again, was highlighted in a national newspaper article
- 6 because this Police Department was the first Police
- 7 Department to wrongfully arrest someone based on facial
- 8 recognition technology. And the real evil of it all is
- 9 that it spreads. So this article was from Dallas, Texas.
- 10 Surprise, surprise, a young black man falsely arrested
- 11 based on facial recognition technology. While arrested,
- 12 he was raped 3 times and then the evidence came out that
- 13 he wasn't even in the State in which the crime occurred.
- 14 So you do nothing and you say nothing, and you allow this
- 15 evil to fester. And I'm so glad that the Dallas Texas
- 16 News article cited Detroit as the first one where facial
- 17 recognition technology was used to falsely arrest
- 18 someone. It's all I got.
- 19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you.
- MS. UNDERWOOD: Sir, we can go to Zoom, if there is
- 21 no one else in the audience that didn't fill out a
- 22 comment card, then we'll go to Zoom. We have 2 speakers
- 23 on Zoom. The first speaker will be Professor Robichaud.
- 24 And then after Professor Robichaud we'll have former
- 25 Commissioner William Davis.



- 1 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you Professor. Professor
- 2 Robichaud.
- 3 PROFFESOR ROBICHAUD: I'm sorry, I don't have any
- 4 comment. I'm just attending.
- 5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay, great. We are so
- 6 grateful to have your attendance here.
- 7 PROFESSOR ROBICHAUD: Thank you.
- 8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Former Commissioner, William
- 9 Davis.
- 10 MR. DAVIS: Good afternoon. Can I be heard?
- 11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes, you can. Go right ahead.
- 12 MR. DAVIS: Okay. I still think that the Board of
- 13 Police Commissioners need to do some public service
- 14 announcements. I still think there should be a greater
- 15 effort to broadcast these meetings live on TV like City
- 16 Council, and other meetings that are broadcast live,
- 17 especially the meetings to start at 3 o'clock. I can
- 18 understand about the community meetings to start at 6:30,
- 19 which is more problematic. But I think this Board should
- 20 make a greater effort to broadcast and make sure more
- 21 people know what you're doing. Also, at least recently,
- 22 you all corrected a mistake that the Board of Police
- 23 Commissioners have been laughed about for months as it
- 24 relates to having 2 employees suspended with pay for, you
- 25 know, since March. You know, that's very troubling. Also,



- 1 it appears as if you're not taking action against...
- 2 there was also a recommendation by the Inspector General
- 3 to take action against Willie Bell.
- 4 You know, you all need to look that up and find out
- 5 that it is still an ongoing recommendation that's been in
- 6 the records for some time. You all need to make sure that
- 7 the next Chair and the Vice Chair is not people that's
- 8 already been Chair of Vice Chair. Because you need to
- 9 make sure you all cut down on past questionable practices
- 10 because there have been and continue to be a number of
- 11 questionable practices. Hopefully you all would strive to
- 12 improve you all image. The image of this Board needs to
- 13 improve. If not, I can really see a number of people not
- 14 being reelected when they redo the district lines. Thank
- 15 you. Have a good day.
- 16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Mr. Ruebin X is
- 17 back in the room.
- MS. UNDERWOOD: We have two more people on Zoom.
- 19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay, let's get him and then
- 20 we'll go to Zoom again. Thank you. Go right ahead.
- 21 RUEBIN X: Okay. To the citizens, residents, and
- 22 taxpayers here in the City of Detroit. What we have is a
- 23 Vice Chairman of the Board of Police Commissioners that's
- 24 on audio violating the City Charter. A number of times
- 25 he's done other things as running a one person towing



- 1 committee on the Board of Police Commissioners, as well
- 2 as running a housing director at the towing truck across
- 3 from receiving hospital. Now, I don't know what it's
- 4 going to take, but I asked the man to stand down and move
- 5 out the way. I made a promise, Willie Bell. Look up, I'm
- 6 talking to you, man. I made a promise to a little girl
- 7 and you stood in the way. She wants you all to stop
- 8 saying her mama killed herself, man. The legitimate,
- 9 valid request. You were in the way, Lawrence Akbar,
- 10 Melanie White. They got rid of Melanie White, and
- 11 Lawrence Akbar, but you are still here and I can't stand
- 12 it.
- 13 And she can't stand it either. Now, I told you
- 14 Keniesha Coleman's murder was going to be addressed, sir.
- 15 I asked you to stand down, sir. I told you I was
- 16 different. Willie Bell, I am one of the coldest. Over the
- 17 last 4 decades, one of the coldest here in the City of
- 18 Detroit. And I only say that because some of the coldest
- 19 in Detroit history have told me to my face that I'm cold
- 20 with it. Now, whatever it takes to address what Mini
- 21 wants, you're going to have to stand out joker, because
- 22 I'm not playing with you now. Whatever kind of political
- 23 situation you have going on it's going to be over with.
- 24 So you need to just go on and resign today, get off the
- 25 Board of Police Commissioners and get somebody in here



- 1 that's going to do the job of civilian oversight over
- 2 this Police Department, period.
- 3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Alright, with that,
- 4 I believe we do have a quorum, and so we can move to our
- 5 regular agenda. And so I'll ask that Acting Secretary,
- 6 Mr. Brown, to begin with the introduction of
- 7 Commissioners.
- 8 MR. BROWN: Chairperson, QuanTez Pressley Here.
- 9 MR. BROWN: Vice Chairperson Willie Bell Present.
- 10 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Tamara Liberty Smith -
- 11 Present.
- 12 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Linda Bernard Attorney
- 13 Linda Bernard, District 2, present.
- MR. BROWN: Commissioner Banks submitted an excused
- 15 absent.
- MR. BROWN: Commissioner Willie A. Burton Present.
- 17 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Lisa Carter -
- 18 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Ricardo Moore, submitted an
- 19 excused absent.
- 20 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Jesus Hernandez -
- 21 MR. BROWN: And Commissioner Roy Gamble Here.
- MR. BROWN: And Mr. Chair, Commissioner Darryl Woods
- 23 says he'll be here by 3:33.
- 24 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay. Thank you.
- MR. BROWN: And Mr. Chair, you have a quorum.



DBOPC Meeting 01/25/2024

- 1 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: And we do indeed have a
- 2 quorum. And so with that, we'll move forward with the
- 3 approval of the January 25th, 2024 agenda. Is there any
- 4 objection to the approval of this agenda? Hearing no
- 5 objection, the agenda is approved. We'll now move on to
- 6 the approval of the minutes for the January 18th, 2024
- 7 meeting. Is there any objection to the approval of these
- 8 minutes? Hearing no objection, the minutes for January,
- 9 18th, 2024 are approved. We did have a closed session
- 10 next last week, and so there is now the approval of the
- 11 closed session minutes from January 18th, 2024. Is there
- 12 any objection to the minutes from the closed session?
- 13 Hearing no objection, those minutes are also approved.
- 14 And now we'll have an introduction to BOPC Staff, Chief
- 15 of Police, Elected Officials and Representatives as well
- 16 as Community Leaders by Mr. Brown.
- 17 MR. BROWN: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair. Current, we
- 18 have Chief Investigator Warfield, Attorney Stephanie
- 19 LaBelle, Supervising Investigator, Ms. LiSonya Sloan, Ms.
- 20 Theresa Underwood, Ms. Candace Hayes, Ms. Jonya
- 21 Underwood, Ms. Jasmine Taylor, ASL American Sign
- 22 Language, Ms. Yakata, and Dr. Stephanie Beatty, Sy is
- 23 doing the video. And I go to the VIPs, Ms. LaDon Davis of
- 24 Councilman Fred Durhal's Office. Ms. Marie Overhaul from
- 25 State Tyrone Carter's Office. Those are the



- 1 introductions. Mr. Chair.
- 2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. It should be noted
- 3 that we have lost our quorum, and so we'll return back to
- 4 public comment. Who do we have?
- 5 MS. UNDERWOOD: Thank you, Mr. Chair. We have Detroit
- 6 Metro, DSA.
- 7 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Detroit Metro.
- 8 DETROIT METRO: Hi. Good afternoon. Can I be heard?
- 9 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes, you can go right ahead.
- 10 DETROIT METRO: Hi sorry, I forgot to change my zoom
- 11 name. My name is Chris Gilmer-Hill. I'm a member of the
- 12 Metro Detroit DSA, as well as a lifelong resident of the
- 13 city's second district. I'm calling in today, firstly to
- 14 voice my opposition to further expansions of the license
- 15 plate reader, license plate camera system, especially
- 16 given the way that the previous expansion was rubber
- 17 stamped through this committee in violation of your own
- 18 procedures. And in light of the fact that we still
- 19 haven't gotten, well, we haven't had enough time to look
- 20 at the results from that. We shouldn't overcorrect just
- 21 because the Police Department can point to say one case
- 22 where cameras were useful in another city and use that as
- 23 an excuse to go sort of full-hog, balls to the wall on
- 24 this without really considering is this right for
- 25 Detroit.



- 1 And this Board just has not done that. You have not
- 2 taken the time to consider these policies. You have not
- 3 done your due diligence, you have not done your oversight
- 4 duty. And advancing this to Council today, without doing
- 5 any of that, would be a disservice to the Board and to
- 6 the community that it serves. I also believe that in
- 7 their own right, these cameras post significant civil
- 8 liberties issues. The Board has not taken the steps that
- 9 Commissioner Burton took in the past to invite members of
- 10 the community, members of the ACLU, Civil Rights groups,
- 11 et cetera, to weigh in on these proposals. I'd like to
- 12 thank Commissioner Burton for doing those sorts of
- 13 actions in the past because that's what really forced us
- 14 to be an open, transparent process. Without that there's
- 15 not any way for you to get public input, and there's no
- 16 way for us as members of the public to tell you that we
- 17 think this is a bad idea. Again, I'd like to reiterate,
- 18 the Commission should not move forward on these rubber
- 19 stamp plans today. And if they do, you should expect that
- 20 we will oppose them at City Council with our full
- 21 capacity. Thank you.
- 22 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. We do indeed have a
- 23 quorum. And it should also be noted that Commissioner
- 24 Lisa Carter has joined us. And so with that, we'll return
- 25 back to our approved agenda. And there is no report from



- 1 the Board of Police Commissioner's officers. And so we'll
- 2 move on to the community impact report.
- 3 MR. BROWN: Mr. Chair, currently at this time, we
- 4 have no community impact report.
- 5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: There is no community impact
- 6 report. And now we will have the Chief of Police Report.
- 7 DC SLOAN: Good afternoon, everybody.
- 8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Can you pull your
- 9 mic a bit closer?
- 10 DC SLOAN: Good afternoon. Is that better?
- 11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yeah. And can we turn her up a
- 12 bit? Thank you.
- DC SLOAN: To the Chair. I'm Deputy Chief Carrie
- 14 Sloan of the Detective Bureau here representing the Chief
- 15 today. Thank you for allowing me to be here.
- 16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: It's still a challenge. I
- 17 don't know if there's maybe another mic we can...
- 18 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: A handheld or whatever.
- 19 DC SLOAN: Thank you.
- 20 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Is that better?
- 21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Let's see.
- DC SLOAN: Okay. How's that?
- 23 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes. Thank you.
- 24 DC SLOAN: Good afternoon, everybody. To the Chair.
- 25 Thank you very much. I'm Deputy Chief Carrie Sloan of the



- 1 Detective Bureau. I appreciate you allowing me to be here
- 2 to report on behalf of the Chief of Police. Update today
- 3 on injured officers within DPD. Today, we currently have
- 4 one department member who is off disabled and recovering
- 5 at home due to an on-duty injury. Our crime data so far
- 6 this year, we are down 19%, overall in violent crime.
- 7 Down 56% in homicides, 24% in non-fatal shootings. And
- 8 we're still working every day to continue to lower those
- 9 numbers further.
- 10 For our mental health-related calls for service,
- 11 year to date. This year, we've had 821 calls for service
- 12 that our CIT program and members have been taking care of
- 13 for us. We have also had 255 overdose-related calls for
- 14 service this year. A couple of significant incidents to
- 15 make you aware of, the first is a death investigation. On
- 16 Wednesday, January 17th, 2024, around 8:00 AM, officers
- 17 were dispatched to the 8,300 block of Longworth for a
- 18 death investigation. When officers arrived on scene, they
- 19 observed a deceased male wrapped in a blanket wearing a
- 20 black hoodie. The victim was lying face down with his
- 21 right arm exposed from beneath the blanket, and officers
- 22 found no weapons or footprints in the area. Detectives
- 23 from the homicide scene, or from the homicide section,
- 24 excuse me, were notified and responded to the scene for
- 25 an investigation. While there detectives received



- 1 information from the family on a missing male and that
- 2 the family had received a sad phone call from an unknown
- 3 person saying that their family member had been put in a
- 4 blanket and left at that location. The Detroit Police
- 5 Department is asking anyone for any information in this
- 6 case to please call Crime Stoppers, 1-800-SPEAKUP or
- 7 Detroit Rewards TV.
- 8 Another incident of importance is a carjacking that
- 9 occurred on Sunday, January 21st, 2024, around 9:00 AM
- 10 officers were dispatched to the area of the 8,000 block
- 11 of Grandville to investigate a carjacking report. When
- 12 officers arrived at the location, they spoke to the
- 13 victim who stated that he had started his vehicle in the
- 14 driveway, which is a red Chevy Silverado. After a short
- 15 time, he exited his residence and entered his vehicle and
- 16 observed a black Jeep pull alongside of him. The victim
- 17 stated that the male who approached him was wearing all
- 18 black and a black ski mask, armed with a handgun. The
- 19 person pointed the gun at him and demanded his vehicle
- 20 from him. The victim did exit the vehicle and the suspect
- 21 drove away from the location with his vehicle followed by
- 22 the Black Jeep. The suspects were last seen driving in
- 23 the area of Warren and Grandville.
- 24 Thankfully, nobody was injured in this incident, but
- 25 we are asking for the community's help in this case. And



- l if anybody has any information to contact Crime Stoppers
- 2 again at 1-800-SPEAKUP, or Detroit Rewards TV. In answer
- 3 to some of the BOPC requests that have been made to the
- 4 department, I want to make you aware that the Board's
- 5 request for information from DPD regarding updates on the
- 6 high school senior from Ecorse, Michigan that was
- 7 unfortunately killed in the City of Detroit. That
- 8 information is being sent over. DPD is also scheduled to
- 9 facilitate the viewing of 2 videos requested by the
- 10 Board. The video footage is involving Nakia Wallace, as
- 11 well as the video incident involving Sergeant Juan
- 12 Anderson. So that viewing is scheduled to take place
- 13 tomorrow, and we encourage the Board to attend if they're
- 14 available.
- 15 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: At what time?
- DC SLOAN: I can get that for you, ma'am. It's not in
- 17 my notes.
- 18 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: I believe it's 1 o'clock. Yes.
- 19 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Okay.
- 20 DC SLOAN: Also in accordance with the Board's
- 21 request, DPD has also provided video footage involving
- 22 Officer Juwan Brown. The video was sent over in the box
- 23 to attorney Stephanie LaBelle. DPD has sought
- 24 clarification regarding at least one of the requests from
- 25 the Board, and we are working towards fulfilling that



- 1 request. It is an ongoing process. I'd also like to make
- 2 you aware that the DPOA recently issued a letter
- 3 objecting to the release of certain information
- 4 pertaining to its members, and that DPD is working toward
- 5 a resolution that will avoid any unnecessary civil
- 6 litigation. DPD has also submitted a copy of its budget,
- 7 as well as a PowerPoint presentation in accordance with
- 8 the Board's request made last week.
- 9 And we will continue to provide updates to the Board
- 10 regarding any remaining requests. A couple of positive
- 11 stories from the past week with DPD, is we participated
- 12 in a DEA Drug Takeback Presentation. This was on Tuesday,
- 13 January 23rd, 2024. Our partners at the DEA Drug
- 14 Enforcement Administration and the Youth Connection came
- 15 to headquarters to present several Neighborhood Police
- 16 Officers awards for keeping our residents and children
- 17 safe by collecting unused and expired medications. The
- 18 11th Precinct NPOs and leadership were honored for
- 19 collecting the most prescription drugs in October of
- 20 2023, which was 85 pounds of unused narcotics.
- 21 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Wow!
- DC SLOAN: Last night, a vigil was held with DPD
- 23 officers in relation to the 11-year-old that was killed
- 24 in a shooting last month. The candlelight vigil was for
- 25 Latrell Mines, who was an 11-year-old killed in a drive-



- 1 by shooting on the Detroit's Eastside. DPD officers were
- 2 there to show their support to the family and let them
- 3 know that the investigation continues and we are working
- 4 around the clock to bring the killer to justice. And that
- 5 completes my report.
- 6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Are there any
- 7 questions for DC Sloan? Yes. Commissioner Gamble.
- 8 COMMISSIONER GAMBLE: Hi. Thank you, Officer. Have
- 9 you looked into the bags that destroy the opiates?
- 10 There's a bag that when you put opiates into it, it
- 11 breaks them down and destroys it. I was wondering if that
- 12 was something that we could probably look into
- 13 distributing. We, gave them out before at my previous
- 14 job, and they seemed to work pretty well. You just put
- 15 the pills in there, you close it up like a Ziploc bag.
- 16 The chemical inside the bag destroys the medication.
- 17 DC SLOAN: Through the Chair. Not that I'm aware of
- 18 currently, but I can check into it and find out if that's
- 19 something that we're utilizing. It sounds like a
- 20 wonderful product.
- 21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: To follow up on that what is
- 22 done with the pills that are confiscated.
- DC SLOAN: It's turned over to the DEA and they have
- 24 a destruction process that they adhere to. Okay.
- 25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Commissioner



- 1 Burton.
- 2 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
- 3 Question for the Chief. Looking at last year for the year
- 4 of 2023, how many shootings, how many shootings that
- 5 occurred on, shooting incidents that occurred on the
- 6 freeway and how many arrests were made for the year 2023?
- 7 DC SLOAN: Through the Board, or I'm sorry. Through
- 8 the Chair. I'm sorry, sir. I don't have the information.
- 9 Michigan State Police as an agreement with us and them,
- 10 they handle the highway shootings. So I don't have the
- 11 information readily available, but we can certainly
- 12 provide that to you.
- 13 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Because our Detroit residents
- 14 will be concerned, you know, concern is to want to know
- 15 that number. And so can you get those numbers to us as
- 16 soon as possible?
- 17 DC SLOAN: Absolutely, sir.
- 18 COMMISSIONER BURTON: We are more concerned about
- 19 those in Detroit.
- 20 DC SLOAN. Understood.
- 21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Mr. Brown, I'm going to ask
- 22 that you record that question again. Place it in writing
- 23 to the Department to follow up. Again, the request is
- 24 about shootings that has happened on Detroit freeways and
- 25 how many arrests have been made on those shootings for



- 1 the year of 2023.
- 2 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Thank you.
- 3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Let the record reflect that
- 4 Commissioner Woods has joined us. Are there any further
- 5 questions? Hearing none, thank you so very much for your
- 6 report. We'll now move back to our communications. And
- 7 again, because we didn't have a quorum to start, we did
- 8 handle some of our public comments. But again, if you are
- 9 desiring to make public comment and are either here or in
- 10 the Zoom you still have an opportunity to do so now. And
- 11 so again, we will resume with public comment.
- MS. UNDERWOOD: Thank you, Mr. Chair. We have 2 on
- 13 Zoom. The first would be excuse me for mispronouncing
- 14 your name Jahdantee Smith, and after that...
- 15 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Hold one second. Can you
- 16 remove the mic? Thank you.
- 17 MS. UNDERWOOD: After Jahdantee Smith, Ms. Maddox.
- 18 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Mr. Jahdantee Smith.
- MR. SMITH: Hello. Can you hear me?
- 20 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes, go right ahead.
- 21 MR. SMITH: Good afternoon Board. I have a few things
- 22 I'd like to talk about. First would be the malfeasance
- 23 and towing with the Detroit Police Department. That is
- 24 very, very bad. Like I keep saying every time I come to
- 25 these meetings, because I had a vehicle that was



- 1 impounded by DPD after an accident for no reason, with no
- 2 reason given. Still going to follow up on that. I'm also
- 3 going to talk about something odd. So, rape kit, the
- 4 past, so I know that's more of a prosecutorial thing, but
- 5 I have a friend who was raped in the past 15 years ago.
- 6 We were kids. And so she has just been contacted by
- 7 Detroit Police Department, a detective about rape kit
- 8 from 15 years ago. And there was malfeasance on the
- 9 police department's part. Officer from the 7th Precinct
- 10 did not follow up correctly.
- 11 I'd also like to say that Detroit Police Department
- 12 needs federal oversight again. I'm going to be pushing
- 13 for that very, very hard. I've seen a lot of corruption
- 14 outside of towing, outside of different issues,
- 15 especially coming out of the 7th Precinct. The 7th
- 16 Precinct is the most corrupt Precinct in the City of
- 17 Detroit, going back to the days of Kwame Kilpatrick and
- 18 the party at the Manoogian Mansion. The MPOs at the 7th
- 19 Precinct are fine. There's a specific Lieutenant Gorman,
- 20 who's terrible. There's a new captain, Captain Coles. He
- 21 might be all right, but outside of that, the 7th Precinct
- 22 is terrible. I'm also going to go again and speak out
- 23 against Deputy Chief Hayes. He's probably going to be the
- 24 first Deputy Chief to get a complaint. He's going to get
- 25 a complaint from me. I also like to say that nobody in



- 1 the Detroit Police Department scares me. I will not be
- 2 silenced. I'm going to speak about towing, and the issues
- 3 that affect the inner city Detroit as much as possible.
- 4 I'd also like to say more of Tamara Green. I'm going to
- 5 still be investigating that. Also, there needs to be
- 6 updates about that 11-year-old boy that was murdered as
- 7 well. So, I feel like there's a lot of issues that
- 8 Detroit Police Department just skims over. But I yield my
- 9 time.
- 10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Chief Investigator,
- 11 I don't know if you made a note about his grievance
- 12 regarding the 7th Precinct's handling of a rape kit. So
- 13 can we follow up with that...?
- 14 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: And report back to us. Thank
- 15 you.
- 16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Who do we have next? Ms.
- 17 Maddox, go right ahead.
- 18 MS. MADDOX: Yes. Thank you. My biggest concern will
- 19 be the safety of everyone and speaking about the Detroit
- 20 Lions, (unclear) why is it happening? Because I got some
- 21 things that might work to celebrate after the AFC game.
- 22 But where are we supposed to be able to park without
- 23 being charged an arm and a leg. And did you along the
- 24 river there is coming up in April, May, June, July,
- 25 August, and September, the scooters, the SUVs and the



- 1 motorized vehicles. They need to find a way to ticket
- 2 them from riding on the sidewalk because I came very
- 3 close to getting to getting hit by one of those ATV's.
- 4 Thank you very much.
- 5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Part of our comment
- 6 brought something to mind for me, DC Sloan, and I don't
- 7 know if this is played out, but have there been any
- 8 destructive incidences in celebrations following the
- 9 football team's win? And if so, are there any special
- 10 measures being put in place for this coming weekend.
- 11 DC SLOAN: Through the Chair? Hopefully you can hear
- 12 me. I came very close. Sir, the incidents that we're
- 13 aware of were a couple of drag racing incidents where we
- 14 have recovered both of the vehicles and impounded them in
- 15 both cases. And we do have a plan in place for every game
- 16 that's happening for events that are planned and even to
- 17 react to occasions where a crowd might gather that we
- 18 were not aware of. So yes, there's a plan in place, sir.
- 19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay. Thank you. Is there any
- 20 further public comment?
- MS. UNDERWOOD: Yes, sir. Your last speaker is Mr.
- 22 Antonio McCarty.
- 23 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good. Go right ahead.
- MR. McCARTY: Alright. I'm here to talk about the
- 25 bright. . .



- 1 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Microphone.
- 2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Hold on. Can we give him the
- 3 handheld? It looks like he might need some movement.
- 4 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair.
- 5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Burton.
- 6 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I just want to bring to your
- 7 attention that public comments are at -
- 8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Duly noted. Duly noted.
- 9 COMMISSIONER BURTON: 4:00 PM, which is this hour.
- 10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yep. Duly noted.
- 11 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: This gentleman knows we can't
- 12 see him?
- 13 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yeah, go right ahead.
- MR. McCARTY: Okay. Now, I'm a resident in Detroit,
- 15 Michigan, and I've been here for a while. My family have
- 16 a quite a bit of tickets. There are 31 tickets on one of
- 17 my properties that I have from the same inspector
- 18 starting February 28th, all the way to December to the
- 19 1st. June and February. I've been getting multiple
- 20 tickets on one property. I bought a property from
- 21 Landbank. It had been abandoned house, right next door to
- 22 me. There were no doors, unsafe for kids. I've been
- 23 taking care of that property for a long time. Not one
- 24 ticket, I have not gotten one ticket the whole year,
- 25 period. My neighbors only had one or two tickets the



- 1 whole year. I have 31 tickets. I take care of my
- 2 neighbor's yard in the yard over there, and it's all
- 3 about accessories. It's about just numbers of things,
- 4 right?
- I have a transcript I had to pay for. I got the
- 6 transcript showing that the officer that you all have in
- 7 the hearing, he threw all some of these tickets out. I
- 8 still get this first offense, second offense, third
- 9 offense. He threw second offense out. He threw some of
- 10 the first offense out. The same expect on 31 tickets is
- 11 insane. I went down there and made a complaint like my
- 12 attorney told me, I was treated like a criminal. I paid
- 13 taxes. They treated me like a criminal. I talked to all
- 14 the supervisors down there. They called officers up the
- 15 first time, no answers, nobody wanted to give me they
- 16 cards. The second time they called the officers up there,
- 17 and they said I threatened them. I said, officer, you're
- 18 sure I threatened them? "No. Well, he said, you sound
- 19 like you threatened them." That's unacceptable. Why? As
- 20 I'm going down there to get answers, not the start
- 21 problems. Why I'm getting 31 tickets on one property and
- 22 I'm being forced to get sale my property. That's how I
- 23 feel. I'm getting forced out of my property big
- 24 corporations because that house right there has been
- 25 abandoned for over 2 years. It's a big company that owns



- 1 it because I know.
- 2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay that's your time.
- 3 MR. McCARTY: Okay.
- 4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Those are DPD officers writing
- 5 those tickets?
- 6 MR. McCARTY: No. These are inspectors from the City
- 7 Department writing violation notes.
- 8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay. Yeah. So I was going to
- 9 have an investigation.
- 10 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Can I respond?
- 11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes. They are not police
- 12 officers. Go right ahead.
- 13 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Okay. I was the first
- 14 administrative law judge for the Blight COurt. I'm very
- 15 familiar with the type. These tickets are issued by
- 16 inspectors who work for CED. I don't know who the new
- 17 director of CED is, but I can give you, when this is
- 18 over. The Director of CED is appointed by the Mayor. I
- 19 would suggest that you talk to him or her. I'll give you
- 20 the number to the Mayor's Office that will allow you to
- 21 get the information on who, or I can call and find out
- 22 who the person is, quite frankly. But after 4 o'clock
- 23 they're not there. I'll be happy to help you in any way
- 24 that I can. I'm very sorry that happened to you. I know
- 25 it's very troubling. And the series of tickets that are



- 1 the third citation can go up to \$10,000 a ticket for
- 2 waste removal. It's just terrible. So I'll help you if
- 3 that's okay with everybody in this room. I'll try to help
- 4 you do that interface to try to get to the bottom of this
- 5 and get those tickets withdrawn.
- 6 MR. McCARTY: Thank you, ma'am.
- 7 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I feel terrible for you.
- 8 MR. McCARTY: And I have pictures to go with each.
- 9 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I know you do.
- 10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: So you all can connect after
- 11 the meeting is concluded.
- MR. McCARTY: Thank you.
- 13 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you so very much.
- 14 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: And also, you don't have
- 15 anything to do with it because it's not a police ticket.
- 16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: No. This would be something
- 17 you'll be doing out of the kindness of your heart.
- 18 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Absolutely.
- 19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is there any further public
- 20 comment?
- MS. UNDERWOOD: Two more.
- 22 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes.
- MS. UNDERWOOD: But on Zoom and Mr. Foster is here.
- 24 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay. So we'll call Mr. Foster
- 25 now and then we'll let you get a chance to get your mic



- 1 back and then we'll deal with the Zoom public comments.
- 2 MR. FOSTER: Good evening.
- 3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Good evening. Go right ahead.
- 4 MR. FOSTER: The first thing I want to say is I
- 5 appreciate a lot of work...
- 6 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Microphone.
- 7 MR. FOSTER: I appreciate a lot of work that's going
- 8 on from those that are doing good. You guys need to keep
- 9 it up. One of the things is this human trafficking
- 10 awareness month. And I think it's important that you guys
- 11 be aware of human trafficking and other ways to address
- 12 it. This is also an election year where border patrol and
- 13 immigration is a big issue within our country and within
- 14 our city, having different districts and different things
- 15 like that. And so I'd like to encourage more recruiting
- 16 in our 6th District to try to get officers that are
- 17 familiar, that look like the people that they serve and
- 18 minorities, period. Second thing, our census says we are
- 19 in poverty, 31% of our city is in poverty.
- When it comes down to enforcements and tickets, our
- 21 impoverished citizens are the ones that get the most of
- 22 those tickets and enforcements. I ask you all to take
- 23 that into consideration. Get policies here where you
- 24 could use compassion, use compassion. Ultimately, these
- 25 tickets on impoverished people come back to the people to



- 1 pay the tab, okay? They linger in other places. Bills
- 2 don't get paid, children get neglected. Different things
- 3 like that. So we have to find other ways in our
- 4 enforcement to match the conditions in which we live in.
- 5 Until those conditions change, let's show more compassion
- 6 where we can show compassion within our community. And
- 7 lastly, I heard a young lady hear from the Youth Advisory
- 8 Panel, and I just want to magnify her voice. She said she
- 9 wanted to see more sex assaults, and a lot of those other
- 10 things that aren't on the record, and aren't in the
- 11 reports to be put in there. So I just want to advocate
- 12 and manifest her voice a little louder and make sure that
- 13 the Youth Panel is heard. Thank you all.
- MS. UNDERWOOD: Mr. Chair, you have one guest on Zoom
- 15 and that is Takaris Nokia.
- 16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Right. I believe that's
- 17 Takaris.
- MR. NOKIA: Yes, Board.
- 19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes. Go right ahead.
- MR. NOKIA: The Board of Police Commissioners answers
- 21 to the department and to the people. And if you guys
- 22 haven't figured it out yet, the voters will remind you of
- 23 that in November. I think that the Board should stop
- 24 rubber stamping items, certain items that are on the
- 25 agenda, and moving public comments to before you guys



- 1 make crucial decisions that affect the community and the
- 2 department. And it's also a concern that if you don't,
- 3 there might be civil rights violations that will bring
- 4 the Board and the city to possible lawsuits, specifically
- 5 with the license plate readers, and how they're use, and
- 6 how that data, and that information is stored, and other
- 7 small issues. But the main point of the message is that
- 8 the Board needs to readdress how and when you guys vote
- 9 and listening to the people first before you make crucial
- 10 decisions that affect everybody.
- 11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Alright. Thank you. And to be
- 12 noted, there is some desires from my colleagues that we
- 13 positioned public comment at the end of meetings as they
- 14 are enumerated in our bylaws. It was the former Chair,
- 15 attempting to be accommodating towards the public as our
- 16 meetings had gone very lengthy, a few hours' worth of
- 17 length that we would have public comment to occur
- 18 earlier. But that is your comment. I'll take under
- 19 advisement with my Vice Chair, and we'll review a more
- 20 appropriate time for public comment. With that, again, we
- 21 thank everyone for their comments and we look forward to
- 22 continuing the business of the Board. We'll now move to
- 23 the presentation to the Board on Greenlight technology
- 24 from the department. It will be a 10 minute presentation.
- 25 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: Good afternoon, Honorable Board.



- 1 My name is Captain Matthew Fulgenzi. I'm the Captain over
- 2 at Crime Intelligence Unit. First slide. What is Project
- 3 Greenlight? Project Greenlight is a place-based risk
- 4 reduction crime prevention strategy. This is a
- 5 partnership with the business owners and the Police
- 6 Department.
- 7 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: One second. Colleagues, you
- 8 should find that after tab 4 in your packet. Go right
- 9 ahead.
- 10 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: Okay. It's a multi-prone approach
- 11 to increase deterrence detection and engagement. Next
- 12 slide, please.
- 13 The roles for Project Greenlight. Again, this is a
- 14 partnership with this business owner. The costs are to
- 15 the business, so the business owner will either buy or
- 16 lease their cameras. There is a lighting requirement. As
- 17 you drive throughout the city, you see that flashing
- 18 light, which is a requirement, and also signage on the
- 19 business. On the DPD side of it, our responsibility is
- 20 monitoring these locations. Each Project Greenlight
- 21 location is flagged through dispatch. So if a run does
- 22 occur at a Project Greenlight location, we get an audible
- 23 alert in our Real-Time Crime Center. Our analyst staff
- 24 24/7, the Real-Time Crime Center have direct access to
- 25 this video. They'll immediately pull it up and they'll be



- 1 able to guide and direct officers as responding to the
- 2 location. Also, proactively, our dedicated staff filter
- 3 through these cameras, and if they see anything like a
- 4 crime occurring, some suspicious, they proactively will
- 5 get on the radio and broadcast this information to
- 6 address those problems. Again, another benefit is Project
- 7 Greenlight locations, our priority one response. Also, in
- 8 addition, we have a compliance team that ensures the
- 9 standards of this program are met at all times. Next
- 10 slide.
- 11 You'll see on your slides several different images.
- 12 It's one of my favorite to look at, and it looks at the
- 13 investment, looking back from 2016, how we started the
- 14 Real-Time Crime Center and Project Greenlight.
- 15 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: One second. Do we know what's
- 16 happening with the slides for the public? Okay, you're
- 17 working on it? Okay, go right ahead.
- 18 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: So, your first image, that's how
- 19 we started 2016 with Project Greenlight, with those 8
- 20 businesses, and we call them the original 8. They're
- 21 still with us today. And as you move to the right, you
- 22 see where we're at today with the Real-Time Crime Center
- 23 and Project Greenlight. As of this morning, we're at 907
- 24 businesses throughout the State of Detroit, and it's
- 25 remarkable of the investment here in the Detroit Police



DBOPC Meeting 01/25/2024

- 1 Department and the positive impact it's had on the
- 2 community. Next slide. This, this next chart just shows
- 3 from 2016, starting with the 8 locations and year after
- 4 year, how we've increased the number of businesses and
- 5 continued that partnership. Next slide.
- 6 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Excuse me, because the slides
- 7 aren't up, can you please read what's on that slide so
- 8 that the public will know what we're talking about?
- 9 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: We haven't come to that slide
- 10 just yet, but I'm sure he'll handle it. Go right ahead.
- 11 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: Yes. So our next slide right here,
- 12 shows our 907 partners throughout the City of Detroit.
- 13 Each of those dots represent a Project Greenlight
- 14 location. And the chart just does a breakdown of the type
- 15 of the Project Greenlight locations. So it's not just a
- 16 gas station, or liquor stores, we're in apartment
- 17 buildings, daycares, you name it. We're spread out
- 18 throughout the entire City of Detroit. Next slide.
- So, I touched on it briefly already about the
- 20 benefits of Project Greenlight, but that priority one
- 21 response, is our special attention. So our officers are
- 22 out in our neighborhoods stopping by and paying special
- 23 attention to each of these locations. The benefit of the
- 24 Real-Time Crime Center and virtual patrols, and also
- 25 having direct access to this video. Each Project



- 1 Greenlight location has 30 days of cloud storage video.
- 2 So if a critical incident does occur, our staff can
- 3 immediately pull up that video, view it, get that
- 4 information out to those detectives, and we can start
- 5 working these investigations. And those people that
- 6 commit crimes in our community, we're holding them
- 7 accountable. We see higher clearance rate when we have
- 8 this level of video, and it produces high quality
- 9 investigations. Next slide. This next chart just shows
- 10 from the time a potential business would like to apply
- 11 for Greenlight to the time they go live. It's
- 12 approximately a 3 to 7 day process if they would like to
- 13 go forward with the program. Next slide.
- 14 This discusses the cost of Project Greenlight. Every
- 15 business owner has an option to buy or lease the cameras.
- 16 If you lease the cameras, it's a minimum of 4 cameras,
- 17 and that comes out to 139.75 per month. You purchase it,
- 18 you'll own your cameras outright, but it's a higher cost.
- 19 There's also cloud storage fees. There's a lighting
- 20 requirement and signage. To the right, you'll see there
- 21 are vendors. We have approved vendors. Again, we want to
- 22 maintain the integrity of the program and the compliance.
- 23 So we have certain vendors that each of these businesses
- 24 have to go through. And then below it you'll see the
- 25 breakdown of the 907 businesses and how many locations



- 1 have the number of cameras. So the minimum is 4 cameras,
- 2 and we have 236 locations with that minimum of 4. And
- 3 then as we go on 618 locations have 5 or 10 cameras. So
- 4 the bulk of our program is to have 5 to 10 cameras at a
- 5 business. I just want to say we're very proud of the
- 6 program, Project Greenlight. This is a model across the
- 7 United States. I'm contacted by numerous departments
- 8 throughout the United States regarding our program, and
- 9 they've come to the City of Detroit to our Real-Time
- 10 Crime Center and taking what we've built back to their
- 11 agencies. If you have time, you'll see that Miami-Dade
- 12 recently launched Project Greenlight, Miami-Dade. And
- 13 that's from them seeing the impact we've had here in
- 14 Detroit. And they want to model our success. Thank you.
- 15 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Questions from
- 16 colleagues. Commissioner Gamble.
- 17 COMMISSIONER GAMBLE: Yes. Do you have the data on
- 18 how many in progress arrests were made, or how many after
- 19 the fact arrests were made directly from the information
- 20 you gleaned from Project Greenlight?
- 21 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: I don't have that information in
- 22 front of me. If there's a certain timeframe you're
- 23 looking for, we can get that information back to you. But
- 24 I'm unprepared to provide any data at this time.

- 1 COMMISSIONER GAMBLE: Yeah, I think it'll be
- 2 beneficial that we see it. You know, to justify the cost,
- 3 I mean the data. The proof of the program working is in
- 4 the data.
- 5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: So is there a particular
- 6 timeframe you would like to place on that?
- 7 COMMISSIONER GAMBLE: Whenever they get it.
- 8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: I mean for the research for
- 9 the data he's looking for. So maybe 2023 or is it a 6
- 10 month period? Like how much?
- 11 COMMISSIONER GAMBLE: We can go back about 6 months
- 12 to a year. I'd just like to see just what the impact is.
- 13 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: You know, I think that's what
- 14 he was asking for. So 6 months to a year worth of data
- 15 and we can, again, make sure that that request is made
- 16 through writing.
- 17 COMMISSIONER GAMBLE: I have one more.
- 18 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: Through the Chair.
- 19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes.
- 20 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: I just want to make it very clear
- 21 too, the cost that went over, that's cost is associated
- 22 to the businesses. The City of Detroit, the Police
- 23 Department, we're not paying for Project Greenlight.
- 24 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yep. Okay. Thank you.
- 25 COMMISSIONER GAMBLE: That's clear, but I have one



- 1 more.
- 2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Go right ahead.
- 3 COMMISSIONER GAMBLE: Alright, so we have vendors.
- 4 How many of these vendors are Detroit-based? That's my
- 5 question.
- 6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: So obviously that's a lot of
- 7 my colleagues' interest around cameras, lightning and
- 8 signage. Maybe you can share what the process is for you
- 9 all selecting these vendors. And again, how many of these
- 10 vendors are Detroit-based businesses?
- 11 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: Those vendors are based on the
- 12 standards that we set for Project Greenlight. I can
- 13 follow back up on which location, if they're within the
- 14 City of Detroit, but I also welcome all vendors if they'd
- 15 like to be part of Project Greenlight and they can help
- 16 costs and bring in more of these businesses, we are
- 17 welcome to bring additional vendors. So if there's a
- 18 vendor in the City of Detroit and they want to meet our
- 19 standards, please I'll have my contact information and I
- 20 would love to share more information.
- 21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay. So please copy that
- 22 request as well for the processes on how many of these
- 23 vendors are Detroit-based businesses. Commissioner
- 24 Carter.
- 25 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You said



- 1 that the data is stored for 30 days and you have access
- 2 to it.
- 3 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: Yes. All video is 30 days of cloud
- 4 storage. And part of that agreement is that we are able
- 5 to access that video and that's how Project Greenlight
- 6 works.
- 7 COMMISSIONER CARTER: So, it's still owned by the...
- 8 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: Correct. This video, the cameras.
- 9 I'm sorry to cut you off, but yes, it is. This is the
- 10 business video. We just have the agreement that we're
- 11 able to access the video if necessary.
- 12 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Okay. Thank you.
- 13 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Through the Chair.
- 14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Bernard, then
- 15 I'll come to you, Commissioner Burton.
- 16 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: My colleague asked about the
- 17 number of Detroit-based vendors. When you're looking at
- 18 that question, please look at the number of minority-
- 19 based vendors as well. The department wants to obviously,
- 20 we want to encourage the involvement of minority-based
- 21 vendors with our contracts and businesses. You also
- 22 stated that there was no cost because all of the costs,
- 23 which are, I think about \$12,000 or what's the general
- 24 cost for the 4 cameras or for the, let's say 10.
- 25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: I think you're looking at, you



- 1 know, again, the leasing 139 to 182, and then if you
- 2 purchase, 2800 to 3200.
- 3 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: But we pay for our officers
- 4 and for the Real-Time Crime Center downstairs or
- 5 upstairs. I'm sorry. So what is the line item budget, if
- 6 you will, for Project Greenlight for DPD?

7

- 8 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: Through the Chair. When you look
- 9 at cost of the Real-Time Crime Center, I'm talking about
- 10 their only focus is not Project Greenlight. There are
- 11 many tasks and duties and responsibilities that are done
- 12 out of there. Project Greenlight is one piece. And also
- 13 our police officer on the street, they're not focused
- 14 just on Project Greenlight. They're responding to all
- 15 sorts of calls for service as well.
- 16 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: But I understand that. I've
- 17 been to the Real-Time Crime Center. It's in a room bigger
- 18 than this. I mean, there are screens everywhere, and
- 19 computers and personnel. We're just asking is, what is
- 20 the cost for the Real-Time Crime Center, which was
- 21 initiated by Chief Craig?
- 22 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: The real, sorry, go ahead.
- MS. UNDERWOOD: If I may, through the Chair, we can
- 24 provide that information you specifically asked for, the
- 25 line item, correct?



- 1 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes.
- 2 MS. UNDERWOOD: We can ensure to that we get that to
- 3 you.
- 4 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: But does it cost us to do
- 5 this? It's a lot of surveillance, and then you're using a
- 6 lot of different technologies, not just Greenlight, which
- 7 you're using license plate readers and everything else.
- 8 So we just want to know how much that costs.
- 9 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Well, I'll try to amend that
- 10 question, and maybe you can answer it this way. In the
- 11 prices that are set for leasing and purchasing, does any
- 12 of that go to DPD for operations?
- 13 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: No.
- 14 CHAIRPERSN PRESSLEY: Okay. Thank you. Commissioner
- 15 Burton.
- 16 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
- 17 Question for the Chief's Office, gentleman at the podium.
- 18 The National Institute of Justice did not see a
- 19 significant reduction of crime in the City of Detroit
- 20 with Project Greenlight. We saw stats where Dallas, Texas
- 21 doubled the size and population, and had fewer homicides
- 22 than the City of Detroit. Concerns from the community is,
- 23 when they signed up for Project Greenlight, officers are
- 24 not coming in signing the log. I think that was something
- 25 that they were under the impression that officers would



- 1 come in daily, sign the log and things of that nature. A
- 2 number of senior citizens buildings in my District have
- 3 gone Project Greenlight. In fact, I advocated years ago
- 4 for senior buildings and recreation centers to go
- 5 Greenlight at a time where former Chief Craig didn't want
- 6 to see those facilities going Greenlight.
- 7 And what happened, we ended up getting Greenlight.
- 8 We did a press conference in front of 1401 Chene, and
- 9 then later that year, they became a Greenlight. And then
- 10 you start seeing Friendship Meadows, River Towers, and
- 11 what's the other building? 75, and Warren. They end up
- 12 going Greenlight. But a lot of the residents in those
- 13 senior homes don't see the presence of officers coming in
- 14 and signing a log or just being friendly. So how is
- 15 Greenlight reducing crime when crime is still high in
- 16 pockets in our community? And this is just what I get
- 17 from Detroiters as they reach out to me daily. And so I'm
- 18 going to echo some of their words here today. But you
- 19 know, the NIJ even have concerns about the uses of
- 20 projects. So, Project Greenlight. I'd just like it if you
- 21 all can just share with us a little bit more.
- 22 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: Yeah. Through the Chair. We always
- 23 have room for improvement, and we do look at special
- 24 intentions. And in our internal meetings, we're looking
- 25 at recruitment for Project Greenlight, making sure the



- 1 community, the business owner is happy with our success,
- 2 our partnership, and we're looking at special attentions.
- 3 And when we're not reaching special attentions at certain
- 4 locations, we talk to our command officers and making
- 5 sure that those NPOs officers are stopping into each of
- 6 those locations.
- 7 [Unclear15:04]
- 8 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: One second. Go right ahead.
- 9 MS. UNDERWOOD: Mr. Chair, I can add to that, please.
- 10 And just as the Board, I'm sure is aware, Project
- 11 Greenlight is a tool that is a part of our layered
- 12 approach in crime reduction. So we've seen some
- 13 significant gains, but as a department, we feel that it's
- 14 part of all of our strategies. And not just that alone.
- 15 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: But I think that...
- 16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Bernard.
- 17 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I
- 18 think Commissioner Burton was trying to ask you as well,
- 19 how many arrests have been generated, and or convictions,
- 20 which is the other part as a result of Project
- 21 Greenlight. We might have that data for 2023, and we'd be
- 22 interested in it because it's a real big expensive
- 23 technology, sort of, if you will, projects.
- MS. UNDERWOOD: Through the Chair. We'll be happy to
- 25 provide that information.



- 1 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
- 2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Any other questions?
- 3 VICE CHAIR BELL: Yes, sir.
- 4 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Vice Chair Bell.
- 5 VICE CHAIR BELL: I would suggest Mr. Chair, at our
- 6 next community meeting at the 11th Precinct, we get some
- 7 feedback from the community themselves to speak to this
- 8 issue. I think it'd be very informative, very helpful.
- 9 Well, I know in my District they are really positive
- 10 about Greenlight and all the other technologies. And I
- 11 know we have two community chairs of the community,
- 12 police community. Ms. Butler, is that you back there?
- MS. BUTLER: Yes.
- 14 VICE CHAIR BELL: And Ms. Maria Overall. I think we
- 15 need that type of feedback. I think it'd be helpful at
- 16 our next community meeting to build that in the process.
- 17 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay.
- 18 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Mr. Chair, one final question.
- 19 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Go ahead, Commissioner Burton.
- 20 COMMISSIONER BURTON: And another concern that I
- 21 didn't raise, but I'll raise it now, is that how many
- 22 lawsuits in the past 3 years have generated from Project
- 23 Greenlight? And that's something that I received earlier
- 24 today, prior coming.
- 25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Alright. So I'm going to ask



- 1 that our Acting Secretary to try to compile all of these
- 2 questions that are being asked so that we can get timely
- 3 responses to them and maybe share it with the
- 4 Commissioner so that they can make sure they've been
- 5 accurately captured. My question, if we can go back to
- 6 the 907 partner locations and I just kind of want to get
- 7 a better sense on these breakdowns. I'm always concerned
- 8 with the graphs that say other, and I just want to try to
- 9 get a sense on what the other might be, particularly
- 10 since the other categories seem quite comprehensive. So
- 11 if it's not community, not residential, not retail, not
- 12 services, what are the partners that are falling under
- 13 others?
- 14 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: Through the Chair. Other would
- 15 consist of locations such as parking lots, junk yards,
- 16 warehouse, and industrial locations.
- 17 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay. Thank you. That's
- 18 clarifying.
- 19 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: Yes.
- 20 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Woods.
- 21 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Yes. Can you talk about any type
- 22 of deterrent effect that Project Greenlight may have with
- 23 some of these businesses? And what type of, and have you
- 24 surveyed the business community that you are a partner
- 25 with in terms of how they feel about it? Do you guys



- 1 chime in with them and get their feedback, and is that a
- 2 matter of record in terms of their feelings, in terms of
- 3 the service that's being provided to them?
- 4 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Good question.
- 5 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: Yeah. Through the Chair, two parts
- 6 with that, the deterrent factor that's why we have that
- 7 flashing green light. And we want the community to know
- 8 that these locations are in partnership with the Police
- 9 Department. We have a Real-Time Crime Center. If a 911
- 10 call does come in, how we're going to respond with that
- 11 video and our officers receiving that priority one run
- 12 out there. So symbolizing that partnership, that flashing
- 13 light, the community knows where they can visit. Now, the
- 14 second piece, talking about the community, we've had many
- 15 incidents where there's been a critical location at a
- 16 non-Greenlight location where community has rallied
- 17 around a business owner and then said, if you're going to
- 18 operate in our community, we want you to join Project
- 19 Greenlight. The community wants safe locations where they
- 20 can visit, and they want that partnership with the Police
- 21 Department. And that's why we've seen success over the
- 22 years. You know, the numbers speak volume going from 8
- 23 locations in 2016, to now over 900 this morning.
- COMMISSIONER GAMBLE: Yes, but I don't think you
- 25 pretty much understood my question in terms of, have you



- 1 guys been able to survey with the businesses that you are
- 2 doing business with and to get their feedback, you know,
- 3 like what are your thoughts about the Greenlight? Is
- 4 there anything that we can do to be able to help enhance
- 5 our service with your business? That's just good customer
- 6 service, you know?
- 7 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: Yeah. Sorry about that. We do have
- 8 a compliance team, a program manager that has that direct
- 9 communication with the business owners. If there's a
- 10 complaint about Project Greenlight, if we need to enhance
- 11 or we need to change our process or how we can make our
- 12 program better, we always welcome feedback and we
- 13 continue on to grow the program as well.
- 14 COMMISSIONER GAMBLE: Is this like, on paper, you
- 15 know, say, do you get a report and you compile this
- 16 report from the various businesses, or is it a survey
- 17 dispatched to all 900 of these businesses just to get
- 18 their feedback and then you can compile that information
- 19 and say, okay, 60% of the businesses are saying that they
- 20 are satisfied with the service, 10% saying, okay, we can
- 21 make some adjustments here, or if an incident occurred
- 22 within the business, what was the response time? What was
- 23 the communication like? You know, something like that.
- 24 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: Yeah. Through the Chair. I don't
- 25 have a report regarding 907, however, we did late last



- 1 year make a survey that we sent out to all the businesses
- 2 and they would fill it out if they had a complaint
- 3 regarding Project Greenlight or areas how we can improve.
- 4 Some businesses did send us feedback, and then we would
- 5 follow up to ensure that it is addressed.
- 6 COMMISSIONER GAMBLE: Okay. Do we have that like in a
- 7 report?
- 8 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Compiled?
- 9 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: Not in a full report, but we can
- 10 follow back up. I can give you some responses.
- 11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Captain Fulgenzi, it looks
- 12 like one of your colleagues wants to either add or
- 13 respond to that question.
- 14 COMMANDER RUSSELL: Good afternoon Board. Through the
- 15 Chair, Commander Sonia Russell, Crime Control Strategies.
- 16 Some of the things that we've done, originally when we
- 17 first started the Project Greenlight program myself and
- 18 Deputy Chief Sloan today, we did initially have a survey
- 19 that rolled out in the very beginning. But of course that
- 20 was back in 2016. Since that time, we've done what we
- 21 call Project Greenlight Business Meetings. And those
- 22 meetings are done every 6 months, in which we call in our
- 23 current vendors, and we have a meeting and we get
- 24 feedback sections. In addition to that, there was a
- 25 Smartsheet that was instituted, I want to say October.



- 1 And it was a feedback Smartsheet, specifically for the
- 2 vendors, to give us feedback as to what's happened at the
- 3 location. We've also put in auditing processes as regards
- 4 to special attention at business locations. So those
- 5 things are audited at CompStat as well. But to get you an
- 6 actual up-to-date survey, we would have to do that again
- 7 this year. But we do follow up with our businesses, and
- 8 that's what we have at this point.
- 9 COMMISSIONER GAMBLE: I think it would be very, very
- 10 prudent to do that so that we can understand how this is
- 11 working. I wouldn't plan on my phone, you know, I was
- 12 doing some research and, you know, I see different
- 13 reports out there. I understand what, you know, the
- 14 Department of Justice has to say about it. I understand
- 15 what Metro Times have to say about it, and various other
- 16 organizations. But I think just getting a direct feedback
- 17 from those vendors or from those customers because they
- 18 are actually customers, and just to have that so that we
- 19 can see how it is working. If there's anything that would
- 20 need to be done to be able to enhance the product or the
- 21 services, you know, we've seen, I think what last year,
- 22 when folks were trapped inside a gas station and a person
- 23 you know, went on a zigity boom (Phonetic) and murdered
- 24 folks in there. You know, it was a terrible situation.
- 25 How did project Greenlight work in that regard, you know,



- 1 and other regards, you know, so I think that feedback is
- 2 vitally important.
- 3 COMMANDER RUSSELL: I understand, sir. We'll get that
- 4 information for you.
- 5 COMMISSIONER GAMBLE: Thank you very kindly.
- 6 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Any further questions, and
- 7 hearing none, again, thank you for your report. Be
- 8 looking forward to those questions and we look to hear
- 9 back from you on those responses.
- 10 CAPTAIN FULGENZI: Thank you.
- 11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Alright. With that,
- 12 we will now, we've already done the report of incoming
- 13 communications. We've done announcements in our amended
- 14 agenda, so we can now move to new business where we have
- 15 the Policy Committee's Report. Chair Bernard of the
- 16 Policy Committee.
- 17 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I had
- 18 visit Kresge Eye Institute right before I came back down,
- 19 and my eyes are still dilated. So I asked my, our
- 20 committee member Mr. Woods, Commissioner Woods to read
- 21 the report, if that's okay with the Chair.
- 22 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: That is fine. Go right ahead,
- 23 Commissioner Woods.
- 24 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Thank you.



- 1 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Absolutely. On behalf of the
- 2 Board of Police Commissioners Policy Committee, please
- 3 see key updates from the committee meeting held on
- 4 January, 23rd, 2024. The Board attendees were Chairperson
- 5 Linda Bernard, Commissioner Darryl Woods and Commissioner
- 6 Willie Burton. The status of outstanding requests.
- 7 Chairperson Linda Bernard provided updates to the
- 8 following outstanding requests. 307.8 gunshot detection
- 9 system the Board approved. Requested changes were emailed
- 10 to DPD for feedback on 12/28/ 2023, awaiting a response.
- 11 205.11, officer involved shooting the Board approved.
- 12 Requests changes were emailed to DPD for feedback on
- 13 12/28/2023. Awaiting response. Mobile fingerprinting
- 14 devices information request to DPD. The request was
- 15 submitted to the Acting Board Attorney to submit to DPD
- 16 on 12/28/2023. Awaiting response. OIG 230006,
- 17 investigation recommendation. The training recommendation
- 18 has not started.
- The bylaws updated were included in the recommended
- 20 bylaws. Changes passed to the Board on 12/21/2023. The
- 21 request to add a doc-u-sign for the Chair's signature
- 22 when wet signatures is not required, has been submitted.
- 23 This will be discussed in the February 6th, 2024 policy
- 24 meeting. DPD specification report, freeway cameras, and
- 25 LPRs PowerPoint was reviewed by committee Chairperson



- 1 Linda Bernard, Commissioner Darryl Woods, and
- 2 Commissioner Willie E. Burton and presented by Chief
- 3 Hayes. Chairperson encouraged public to be in attendance
- 4 to share comments. If public is not able to attend, send
- 5 in comments to the BOPC's email to be reviewed.
- 6 Chairperson Linda Bernard, reviewed, raised question from
- 7 previous policy meeting dated 1/9/2024. Request DPD to
- 8 provide an update list of the agencies received, request
- 9 DPD to provide the Board a copy of the agreement,
- 10 received, request DPD and MSP to provide data on the
- 11 number of crimes committed on the freeways or in
- 12 comparison to overall crimes received but not has been
- 13 compared to overall crimes.
- 14 Invite the Director of MSP to speak at
- 15 committee/Board meetings. Chief Hayes provided a response
- 16 that the community will be able to attend and share
- 17 comments during public hearing. The contract calls for
- 18 procurement is \$30 million, and then 3.5 million annual;
- 19 request DPD to provide more details about the source of
- 20 funding. Timothy Stark from the Mayor's Office provided
- 21 more detail on time sensitivity of the funds. 2026 is the
- 22 end date of spending the funds. Commissioner Woods made
- 23 the motion to vote out of committee during meeting.
- 24 Chairperson second the motion with a caveat that the
- 25 Policy Committee will develop a policy regarding the



- 1 freeway cameras and LPRs with DPD, which will regulate
- 2 the uses of the freeway cameras and LPRs. The next Policy
- 3 Committee meeting is scheduled for February 6, 2024 at
- 4 5:00 PM. Sincerely, Chairperson Linda Bernard.
- 5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Chair Bernard, do
- 6 you have anything further?
- 7 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Yes. Really quickly. There was
- 8 a report that I'd like to, if we don't have the copies
- 9 here today at the next board meeting, the report that was
- 10 provided by Deputy Chief Hayes, I'd like the community to
- 11 have that report on freeway shootings. And it starts with
- 12 this issue about freeway shootings have tripled since the
- 13 pandemic. This is to me... I'm very much against the
- 14 intrusion of government into the personal lives, personal
- 15 affairs of people. And this, you know, this whole
- 16 surveillance world that we're in now. But as I pointed
- 17 out at the meeting, ladies and gentlemen, the United
- 18 States Supreme Court, like almost 25 years ago, wrote an
- 19 opinion that said, we have no right to privacy in public
- 20 areas. It was an opinion that was generated as a result
- 21 of surveillance at Miami Beach in Florida.
- 22 And they put all these cameras out there. And then
- 23 there were these number of challenges and so forth to it.
- 24 But it's clear, and the court has reaffirmed that
- 25 decision that there is no right to privacy in a public



- l area. Obviously a freeway is a public area. I mean, it's
- 2 not indoors or anything like that. So it's controversial,
- 3 it's concerning to me. What we agreed to do, and what we
- 4 are prepared to recommend to the Board today, is to
- 5 approve the sharing of the specifications report on the
- 6 freeway camera system for progression if you will, for
- 7 forwarding to City Council. There are things in that
- 8 report that bothers me a lot. And I think bothered our
- 9 other Commissioners. Clearly Commissioner Burton. So, the
- 10 agreement that we agreed to was that we would approve it
- 11 out of committee, but with the caveat that the Policy
- 12 Committee would generate a policy on the use of freeway
- 13 cameras that controls what DPD can do with it.
- 14 That's all we can do anyway. So that's the reason
- 15 that we approved it out. It initially was designed for
- 16 serious crimes, like you couldn't, and we are going to
- 17 make this extremely clear. Like a bank robbery that just
- 18 happened, or a freeway shooting or rage, you know,
- 19 felony, only high level felonies. We are supposed to be
- 20 collecting and keeping this data concerning. And then the
- 21 issue of how long we keep the data and all these. All
- 22 these things will be spelled out in the policy. But right
- 23 now, the State of Michigan has given us \$30 million to do
- 24 this, only on our freeways here in Detroit. So it cuts
- 25 off, you know, when you get down the road to Grosse



- 1 Pointe and all that kind of stuff. These are cameras that
- 2 will be on Detroit area freeways only.
- 3 So we're going to develop that policy. We're going
- 4 to have a big public meeting where everyone can read the
- 5 policy. I'll make sure that you have a copy of the
- 6 specifications and a copy of the department's report so
- 7 you can really say what you think about it. And so we can
- 8 air this out, and then we're going to put together the 3
- 9 of us on our committee, we're going to put together a
- 10 policy concerning that, pulls it back that restricts it
- 11 to what its design purpose is, which is to address
- 12 serious felonies. Not something like child support.
- 13 Nothing, you know, no, you know, minor, not minor, but
- 14 there are felonies. And then, of course, there are
- 15 felonies. So we're interested in those that are violent
- 16 and that pose a threat, Amber alerts to the community. So
- 17 you're going to get something back. But we felt it was
- 18 important, and I'll let my colleague, both colleagues
- 19 speak to it, but I think Mr. Woods spoke to it most
- 20 passionately regarding, because he's been to some of
- 21 these funerals involving shootings on freeways. And so
- 22 I'll just let him speak and then of course...
- 23 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Well, before he speaks...
- 24 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: If that's okay.
- 25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: I just want to be clear, is



- 1 there any voting action coming out that committee?
- 2 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Yes.
- 3 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: So what is that motion?
- 4 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: It is to approve the contract,
- 5 if you will, or the forwarding of the specifications
- 6 report to City Council so that we can begin to act on it,
- 7 because the Council is not going to act without the
- 8 approval of the Board. So we can get the ball rolling and
- 9 we can, of course, refine the policy. This body will
- 10 refine the policy.
- 11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. So since that was
- 12 voted on in the Policy Committee again, the motion to
- 13 approve the specification report for freeway camera
- 14 projects and for that to city council it doesn't require
- 15 a second, but is there any discussion?
- 16 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I'd like to, yeah, I'd like to
- 17 add a discussion and amend.
- 18 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Commissioner Burton.
- 19 COMMISSIONER BURTON: For discussion, Mr. Chairman,
- 20 is that you know, we received a presentation at Tuesday's
- 21 Policy Subcommittee, and we didn't have an attorney
- 22 that's assigned to this Board present in that meeting,
- 23 nor did we have anyone from our office you know, like a
- 24 policy person present, you know, in that meeting as well.
- 25 So therefore, and where we're the community? We didn't



- l hear from Civil Liberty activist groups, organizations.
- 2 You have the Post Institute here that's local, you have
- 3 ACLU and many other prominent organizations. So we didn't
- 4 hear from any of them. And so to hear a presentation and
- 5 then to vote it out the same day, I just find that it
- 6 was, you know, it was preposterous at that moment. I
- 7 think to hear a presentation is one thing. When work is
- 8 being done in the committee, it's another. The work is
- 9 not done in the committee. It appeared that this
- 10 committee just moved it right out of committee. And to
- 11 me, that was improper. And I think there's a way that we
- 12 should do things. And so that's for discussion. And I
- 13 guess I'll allow my other colleagues to make discussion,
- 14 but I do like to amend the motion after discussion, Mr.
- 15 Chair.
- 16 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is there any further...?
- 17 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Chairman, I'd just like to
- 18 correct the fact the Board has had this document on the
- 19 request for the freeway cameras since December. It is now
- 20 almost the end of January. It was presented to the full
- 21 Board. It came in from the Chief's Office, and then they
- 22 want to move this forward. They came to us that day. It
- 23 was on the agenda anyway, but saying that it was
- 24 important that we move it out so we can capture the \$30
- 25 million. And of course, the city, we, DPD will pay 3.5



- 1 million a year to maintain the system. So that's the
- 2 framework under which this occurred. It is not a
- 3 surprise, and anyone and everyone could have responded to
- 4 it prior to the day of the committee meeting.
- 5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: I'll have Commissioner Woods
- 6 to say something, but let me say that I think that the
- 7 efficiency that we hope to capture in committees, having
- 8 committees is so that we don't then have a committee
- 9 meeting in the full Board. Okay. So I recognize that the
- 10 Policy Committee should have, and I have confidence that
- 11 you all have already deliberated this and come out with a
- 12 recommendation. And so to echo what you already did in
- 13 your committee meetings may not be the best use of our
- 14 time. And so, again, just in the future that we might be
- 15 a bit more efficient if we're going to keep standing
- 16 committees. Commissioner Woods.
- 17 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Absolutely. We made a strong
- 18 recommendation for this. And just without belaboring it,
- 19 I'll just talk about the tyranny that has happened on
- 20 these freeways. And personally going to a 2-year-old
- 21 funeral whose life was snuffed out, you know, seeing a
- 22 little baby casket and many others. We did have vigils. I
- 23 think Commissioner Smith was probably at one of the
- 24 vigils with us on the Southfield Freeway with other
- 25 families and things of that nature. It is just something



- 1 that we need to move on with the fierce urgency on how to
- 2 protect our citizens on these freeways, to have the
- 3 numbers quadruple. That's why we made that
- 4 recommendation. We stand by the recommendation.
- 5 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Alright. Thank you. Any
- 6 further discussion? Vice Chair Bell.
- 7 VICE CHAIR BELL: Perhaps I think Deputy Chief Sloan
- 8 could give me some clarity on the cameras and the
- 9 freeway. Do we have any authority in terms of
- 10 investigating or policing or monitoring that at all? I
- 11 think it was the Michigan State Police that had that
- 12 assignment, that protocol.
- DC SLOAN: To the best of my knowledge, sir, through
- 14 the Chair. Apologize. To the best of my knowledge, no.
- 15 The project is funded from the State and then would be
- 16 managed by the Detroit Police Department. That's the best
- 17 of my knowledge, yes.
- 18 VICE CHAIR BELL: Okay. I just want clarity. Thank
- 19 you.
- 20 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Any further discussion? Yes.
- 21 Commissioner Woods.
- 22 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Absolutely. And this will be a
- 23 partnership. You know, the Michigan State Police is
- 24 definitely involved with this, and the governor saw fit
- 25 to bless the City of Detroit with \$30 million to help



- 1 protect its citizens.
- 2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Okay. Any further questions
- 3 and debate on this motion, coming out of the Policy
- 4 Committee? Hearing no further discussion, again, the
- 5 motion coming out of the Policy Committee is to approve
- 6 the specification report for the freeway camera project
- 7 and forward that to City Council. All those in favor,
- 8 please signify...
- 9 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I'd like to amend the motion,
- 10 Mr. Chairman.
- 11 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Go right ahead.
- 12 COMMISSIONER BURTON: You know, I'd like to amend the
- 13 motion to send this back to committee. A request has been
- 14 made for, I'm requesting for attorney, our attorney to
- 15 weigh in on this as well. I'm also requesting today for
- 16 the number of freeway shootings that occurred in Detroit
- 17 incidents, how many incidents that occurred as far as
- 18 freeway shootings in Detroit, and how many arrests that
- 19 were made for the year 2023. And so...
- 20 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Sorry. That is out of order.
- 21 Your amendment doesn't amend the actual motion that is
- 22 currently on the floor. That sounds like a different
- 23 motion.
- 24 COMMISSIONER BURTON: You're absolutely right, Mr.
- 25 Chairman. I quess the motion that I would amend today is



- 1 to amend to send this back to committee.
- 2 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is there a second? Right.
- 3 Hearing none, there is no second. So there's no amendment
- 4 to that motion. Again, all those in favor of approving
- 5 the specification report for the freeway camera project
- 6 and sending that to City Council, please signify by
- 7 saying, aye.
- 8 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Roll call vote, Mr. Chairman.
- 9 COMMISSIONER WOODS: Aye.
- 10 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: A roll call vote has been
- 11 called for. I ask that Mr. Brown, ask for attendance.
- MR. BROWN: Chairperson Pressley Aye.
- MR. BROWN: Vice Chairperson Bell Yes.
- MR. BROWN: Commissioner Liberty Smith Yes.
- MR. BROWN: Commissioner Bernard Yes.
- 16 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Burton No.
- 17 Mr. BROWN: Commissioner Carter Yes.
- 18 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Gamble Yes.
- 19 MR. BROWN: Commissioner Woods Yes.
- MR. BROWN: Mr. Chair, 7 votes to 1 vote.
- 21 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: So that motion passes.
- 22 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: Mr. Chairman, if I may.
- 23 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Yes.
- 24 COMMISSIONER BERNARD: I just want to remind everyone
- 25 that we're going to create a policy concerning this



- 1 procurement. This is not going to happen for the actual
- 2 installation for months. And the department has agreed,
- 3 because we're going to make it narrower, at least in my
- 4 opinion, narrower. So that you absolutely have an
- 5 absolute right to review all the documents that we have.
- 6 All of these documents are online. Everything that the
- 7 Policy Committee does, all the proposed policies and the
- 8 one that we will be putting together concerning this will
- 9 be on there. Please let us know what you think. Please
- 10 come to the meetings. They are every other Tuesday at 5
- 11 o'clock, open free. You don't have to go through the
- 12 search downstairs or anything like that. You can come
- 13 right out into the committee meeting. I invite you.
- 14 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Go ahead, Commissioner Woods.
- 15 COMMISSIONER WOODS: If I may just to add to that.
- 16 The public should know that no type of traffic type
- 17 incidents will be involved. And so this has nothing to do
- 18 with traffic or any of those type of things. Only for
- 19 violent crimes when someone is killed, shot at, and
- 20 harassed on the freeway in the manor or Amber alert. So,
- 21 no type of misdemeanors, no type of traffic things that's
- 22 in these serious, serious type situations. Thank you, Mr.
- 23 Chairman, for your indulgence.

24

25 CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Thank you. Any further



comments? Any other new business? Hearing none, the Chair entertains a motion for adjournment. COMMISSIONER BERNARD: So moved. CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: Is there a second? COMMISSIONER WOODS: Second. CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those in favor please signify by saying, aye. COMMISSIONERS: Aye. CHAIRPERSON PRESSLEY: All those opposed, no? That motion passes. This meeting is adjourned. Thank you so much for your time and cooperation. (Meeting Adjourned at 4:27pm)

1	
2	
3	STATE OF MICHIGAN)
4)
5	COUNTY OF WAYNE)
6	
7	RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE AND NOTARIZATION
8	
9	I, Donald Handyside, Court Recorder, do
10	hereby certify that on January 18, 2024 at 3:00p.m.,
11	I did record the Detroit BOPC meeting, the same
12	being later reduced to typewriting and that the
13	foregoing is a true and accurate transcription of
14	said electronic recording taken at such time and
15	place.
16	I further certify that I am not related to
17	or employed by any party of this cause or their
18	respective counsel.
19	
20	Lower -
21	DONALD HANDYSIDE (CER 1464)
22	Notary Public
23	My Commission Expires: 5/6/2027
24	



25

\$

\$10,000 28:1

\$12,000 39:23

\$30 52:18 54:23 57:24 59:25

(

(phonetic)and 49:23

1

1 17:18 61:20

1-800-SPEAKUP 16:6 17:2

1/19/2024 3:24

1/20/24 3:25

1/9/2024 52:7

10 31:24 36:3,4 39:24

10% 47:20

11-year-old 18:23,25 23:6

11th 3:11 18:18 44:6

12/21/2023 51:20

12/28 51:10

12/28/2023 51:13.16

139 40:1

139.75 35:17

1401 42:8

15 22:5,8

17th 15:16

182 40:1

18th 11:6,9,11

19% 15:6

1st 3:9 25:19

2

2 4:23 6:22 7:24 10:13 17:9

21:12 26:25

2-year-old 58:20

2000 5:11

2016 33:13,19 34:3 46:23

48:20

2023 18:20 20:4,6 21:1 37:9

43:21 51:10 60:19

2024 2:3 3:13,14,16 11:3,6,9, 11 15:16 16:9 18:13 51:4,23 53:3

2026 52:21

205.11 51:11

21st 16:9

225141 4:24

230006 51:16

236 36:2

23rd 18:13 51:4

24% 15:7

24/7 32:24

25 53:18

255 15:13

25th 2:3 11:3

27th 3:16

2800 40:2

28th 25:18

3

3 3:22 4:12 6:12 7:17 35:12

44:22 55:8

3.5 52:18 57:25

30 35:1 39:1,3

307.8 51:8

31 25:16 26:1,10,21

31% 29:19

3200 40:2

3:00 2:2 3:9

3:33 10:23

4

4 3:22 9:17 27:22 32:8 35:16

36:1,2 39:24

4:00 25:9

4:27pm 63:13

5

5 36:3,4 62:10

56% 15:7

5:00 3:15,16 53:4

6

6 37:9,11,14 48:22 53:3

60% 47:19

618 36:3

6:30 3:11 7:18

6th 3:14 29:16 51:23

7

7 35:12 61:20

75 42:11

7th 22:9,15,18,21 23:12

8

8 33:19,20 34:3 46:22

8,000 16:10

8,300 15:17

800 4:18

821 15:11

85 18:20

8:00 15:16

8:55 4:25

8th 3:11

9

9 4:19

900 46:23 47:17

907 33:23 34:12 35:25 45:6

47:25

911 46:9

9:00 16:9

Α

abandoned 25:21 26:25

absent 10:15,19

absolute 62:5

absolutely 20:17 28:18 51:1 58:17 59:22 60:24 62:4

access 32:24 34:25 39:1,5,11

accessories 26:3

accident 22:1

accommodating 31:15

accordance 17:20 18:7

accountable 35:7

accurately 45:5

ACLU 13:10 57:3

act 56:6,7

Acting 10:5 45:1 51:15

action 8:1,3 56:1

actions 13:13

activist 57:1

activities 5:10

actual 49:6 60:21 62:1

add 43:9 48:12 51:21 56:17

62:15

addition 33:8 48:24

additional 38:17

address 9:20 29:11 33:6 55:11

addressed 9:14 48:5

adhere 19:24

adjourned 63:10,13

adjournment 63:2

adjustments 47:21

Administration 18:14

administrative 27:14

advancing 13:4

advisement 31:19

Advisory 30:7

advocate 30:11

advocated 42:3

AFC 23:21

affairs 53:15

affect 23:3 31:1,10

afternoon 2:2 3:7 5:22 7:10 11:17 12:8 14:7,10,24 21:21

31:25 48:14

agencies 36:11 52:8

agenda 2:7 4:7 10:5 11:3,4,5 13:25 30:25 50:14 57:23

agreed 54:3,10 62:2

agreement 20:9 39:4,10 52:9

54:10

ahead 2:11 3:20 7:11 8:20 12:9 21:20 23:17 24:23 25:13

27:12 29:3 30:19 32:9 33:17

34:10 38:2 40:22 43:8 44:19

50:22 60:11 62:14

air 55:8

Akbar 9:9,11

alert 32:23 62:20

alerts 55:16

allowing 14:15 15:1

alongside 16:16

Alright 10:3 24:24 31:11 38:3

44:25 50:11 59:5

amaze 5:24

Amber 55:16 62:20

Amen 2:12,25 3:1

amend 41:9 56:17 57:14 60:9,

12,21,25 61:1

amended 2:7 4:7 50:13

amendment 60:21 61:3

American 11:21

analyst 32:23

Anderson 17:12

announcement 3:8

announcements 3:4,5,18 7:14

50:13

annual 52:18

answers 26:15,20 30:20

Antonio 24:22

apartment 34:16

Apologize 59:14

app 5:5

appeared 57:9

appears 8:1

apply 35:10

appointed 27:18

approach 32:10 43:12

approached 16:17

approval 11:3,4,6,7,10 56:8

approve 54:5,10 56:4,13 60:5

approved 11:5,9,13 13:25 35:21 51:9,11 54:15

approving 61:4

approximately 35:12

April 23:24

area 15:22 16:10,23 54:1 55:2

areas 48:3 53:20

arm 15:21 23:23

armed 16:18

arrest 6:7,17

arrested 6:10,11

arrests 20:6,25 36:18,19

43:19 60:18

arrived 15:18 16:12

article 3:23,24,25 6:5,9,16

ASL 11:21

assaults 30:9

assigned 56:22

assignment 59:12

attempting 31:15

attend 17:13 52:4,16

attendance 7:6 52:3 61:11

attendees 51:4

attending 7:4

attention 25:7 34:21,23 49:4

attentions 43:2,3

attorney 10:12 11:18 17:23 26:12 51:15 56:21 60:14

ATV'S 24:3

audible 32:22

audience 4:13 6:21

audio 8:24

audited 49:5

auditing 49:3

August 23:25

authority 59:9

avoid 18:5

awaiting 51:10,13,16

awards 18:16

aware 15:15 17:4 18:2 19:17 24:13,18 29:11 43:10

awareness 29:10

aye 61:7,9,12 63:7,8

В

baby 58:22

back 8:17 12:3 13:25 21:6 22:17 23:14 29:1,25 33:13 36:10,23 37:11 38:13 44:12 45:5 48:10,20 50:9,18 55:10,

17 60:13 61:1

bad 13:17 21:24

bag 19:10,15,16

bags 19:9

ball 56:8

balls 12:23

bank 54:17

Banks 10:14

based 6:7,11 38:11 39:19

Beach 53:21

Beatty 11:22

begin 2:3,8 10:6 56:6

beginning 48:19

behalf 15:2 51:1

belaboring 58:18

Bell 8:3 9:5,16 10:9 44:3,4,5, 14 59:6,7,18 61:13

beneath 15:21

beneficial 37:2

benefit 33:6 34:23

benefits 34:20

Bernard 4:3 10:12,13 14:18,20 17:15,19 23:14 25:1,11 27:10, 13 28:7,9,14,18 29:6 34:6 39:14,16 40:3,16 41:4 43:15,

16 44:1 46:4 48:8 50:15,17,24 51:5,7 52:1,6 53:4,5,7 55:24

56:2,4 57:17 61:15,22,24 63:3

betrayal 6:1

big 26:23,25 29:13 43:22 55:4

bigger 40:17

biggest 23:18

Bills 30:1

bit 14:9,12 25:16 42:21 58:15

black 6:10 15:20 16:16,18,22

blanket 15:19.21 16:4

bless 59:25

blessings 2:22

Blight 27:14

block 15:17 16:10

Blount 4:14 5:21,22,23

board 2:4,17 5:13,22,25 7:12, 19,22 8:12,23 9:1,25 13:1,5,8

14:1 17:10,13,25 18:9 20:7 21:21 30:18,20,23 31:4,8,22,

23,25 43:10 48:14 51:2,4,9, 11,15,20 52:9 53:9 54:4 56:8,

22 57:18,21 58:9

Board's 17:4,20 18:8

body 56:9

boom 49:23

BOPC 3:8 11:14 17:3

BOPC's 52:5

border 29:12

bothered 54:8

bothers 54:8

bottom 5:19 28:4

bought 25:20

box 17:22

boy 23:6

breakdown 34:14 35:25

breakdowns 45:7

breaks 19:11

briefly 34:19

bright 24:25

bring 19:4 25:6 31:3 38:16,17

broadcast 7:15,16,20 33:5

brought 24:6

Brown 3:6,7,21 10:6,8,9,10, 12,14,16,17,18,20,21,22,25 11:16,17 14:3 17:22 20:21 61:11,12,13,14,15,16,17,18, 19.20

budget 18:6 40:5

build 44:16

building 42:11

buildings 34:17 42:2,4

built 36:10

bulk 36:4

Bureau 14:14 15:1

Burton 2:6 10:16 13:9,12 20:1, 2,13,18 21:2 25:4,5,6,9 39:13, 15 41:15,16 43:17,18 44:18, 19,20 51:6 52:2 54:9 56:16, 18,19 60:9,12,24 61:8,16

bus 5:6

business 2:21 31:22 32:5,14, 15,19 35:10,15 36:5 39:10 43:1 45:24 46:17 47:2,5,9,22 48:21 49:4 50:14 63:1

businesses 33:20,24 34:4 35:23,25 37:22 38:10,16,23 39:21 45:23 47:1,16,17,19 48:1,4 49:7

Butler 44:12,13

buy 32:15 35:15

bylaws 31:14 51:19,20

C

Cadillac 4:24,25

call 5:13 16:2,6 27:21 28:24 33:20 46:10 48:21,22 61:8,10

called 26:14,16 61:11

calling 12:13

calls 15:10,11,13 40:15 52:17

camera 12:15 54:6 56:13 60:6

61:5

cameras 4:2 12:22 13:7 32:16 33:3 35:15,16,18 36:1,3,4 38:7 39:8,24 51:24 53:1,2,22 54:13 55:1 57:19 59:8

Candace 11:20

candlelight 18:24

capacity 13:21

captain 22:20 31:25 32:1,10 33:18 34:11 36:21 37:18,20 38:11 39:3,8 40:8,22 41:13 42:22 45:14,19 46:5 47:7,24 48:9,11 50:10

capture 57:24 58:7

captured 45:5

car 4:24,25 5:6

card 6:22

cards 5:6 26:16

care 2:20 15:12 25:23 26:1

carjacking 16:8,11

Carrie 14:13,25

Carter 10:17 13:24 38:24,25

39:7,12 61:17

Carter's 11:25

case 12:21 16:6,25

cases 24:15

cash 5:5

casket 58:22

categories 45:10

Catholic 5:23

caveat 52:24 54:11

ceases 5:24

CED 27:16,17,18

celebrate 23:21

celebrations 24:8

census 29:18

Center 32:23,24 33:14,22 34:24 36:10 40:4,9,17,20 46:9

centers 42:4

cetera 13:11

Chair 3:7,18,21 4:4,12 8:7,8 10:22,25 11:17 12:1,5 14:3, 13,24 19:17 20:8 21:12 24:11 25:4 30:14 31:14,19 37:18 38:25 39:13 40:8,23 42:22 43:9,24 44:3,4,5,14,18 45:14 46:5 47:24 48:15 50:15,21 53:5 57:15 59:6,7,14,18 61:20 63:1

Chair's 51:21

Chairman 8:23 17:19 20:2 41:16 43:17 44:1 50:17 56:19 57:17 60:10,25 61:8,22 62:23

CHAIRPERSN 41:14

Chairperson 2:2 3:1,19 4:6 5:20 6:19 7:1,5,8,11 8:16,19 10:3,8,9,24 11:1 12:2,7,9 13:22 14:5,8,11,16,21,23 17:18 19:6,21,25 20:21 21:3, 15,18,20 23:10,16 24:5,19,23 25:2,5,8,10,13 27:2,4,8,11 28:10,13,16,19,22,24 29:3 30:16,19 31:11 32:7 33:15 34:9 36:15 37:5,8,13,19,24 38:2,6,21 39:14,25 41:1,9 43:8,16 44:2,4,17,19,25 45:17,20 48:11 50:6,11,22 51:4,7,25 52:3,6,24 53:4,5 55:23,25 56:3,11,18 57:16 58:5 59:5,20 60:2,11,20 61:2, 10,12,13,21,23 62:14,25 63:4, 6,9

chairs 44:11

challenge 14:16

challenges 53:23

chance 28:25

change 12:10 30:5 47:11

Chaplain 2:10,12

charged 23:23

chart 34:2,14 35:9

Charter 8:24

check 19:18

chemical 19:16

Chene 42:8

Chevy 16:14

Chief 2:15 11:14,18 14:6,13, 14,25 15:2 20:3 22:23,24 23:10 40:21 42:5 48:18 52:2, 15 53:10 59:7

Chief's 41:17 57:21

child 55:12

children 18:16 30:2

chime 46:1

Chris 12:11

Church 5:23

CIT 15:12

citation 28:1

cited 6:16

citizens 3:15 8:21 29:21 42:2 59:2 60:1

city 2:16,23 7:15 8:22,24 9:17 12:22 13:20 17:7 22:16 23:3 27:6 29:14,19 31:4 32:17 34:12,18 36:9 37:22 38:14,18 41:19,22 54:7 56:6,14 57:25 59:25 60:7 61:6

city's 12:13

civil 13:7,10 18:5 31:3 57:1

civilian 10:1

clarification 17:24

clarifying 45:18

clarity 59:8,18

clear 37:20,25 53:24 54:17 55:25

clearance 35:7

clock 19:4

close 19:15 24:3,12

closed 11:9,11,12

closer 14:9

cloud 35:1,19 39:3

cold 9:19

coldest 9:16,17,18

Coleman's 9:14

Coles 22:20

colleague 39:16 55:18

colleagues 31:12 32:7 36:16 48:12 55:18 57:13

colleagues' 38:7

collecting 18:17,19 54:20

command 43:4

Commander 48:14,15 50:3

comment 4:8,11 6:22 7:4 12:4 21:9,11 24:5,20 28:20 31:13, 17,18,20

comments 21:8 25:7 29:1 30:25 31:21 52:4,5,17 63:1

Commission 13:18

Commissioner 2:6 4:3 6:25 7:8 10:10,12,14,16,17,18,20, 21,22 13:9,12,23 14:18,20 17:15,19 18:21 19:7,8,25 20:2,13,18 21:2,4 23:14 25:1, 4,5,6,9,11 27:10,13 28:7,9,14, 18 29:6 34:6 36:16,17 37:1,7, 11,17,25 38:3,23,25 39:7,12, 13,14,15,16 40:3,16 41:4,14, 16 43:15,16,17,18 44:1,18,19, 20 45:4,20,21 46:4,24 47:14 48:6,8 49:9 50:5,17,20,23,24 51:1,5 52:1,2,22 53:7 54:9 55:24 56:2,4,16,18,19 57:17 58:5,16,17,23 59:21,22 60:9, 12,24 61:8,9,14,15,16,17,18, 19,22,24 62:14,15 63:3,5

Commissioner's 2:4 14:1

Commissioners 2:17 5:13,25 7:13,23 8:23 9:1,25 10:7 30:20 51:2 54:9 63:8

commit 35:6

committed 52:11

committee 3:12,14,15,17 4:3 9:1 12:17 50:16,20 51:2,3,25 52:23,25 53:3 54:11,12 55:9 56:1,12 57:8,9,10 58:4,8,10, 13 60:4,5,13 61:1 62:7,13

Committee's 50:15

committee/board 52:15

committees 58:7,8,16

communication 47:9,23

communications 21:6 50:13

community 3:10 4:9 7:18 11:16 13:6,10 14:2,4,5 30:6 31:1 34:2 35:6 41:22 42:16 43:1 44:6,7,11,12,16 45:11,24 46:7,13,14,16,18,19 52:16 53:10 55:16 56:25

community's 16:25

company 26:25

compared 52:13

comparison 52:12

compassion 29:24 30:5,6

compile 45:1 47:15,18

Compiled 48:8

complaint 3:15 22:24,25 26:11 47:10 48:2

completes 19:5

compliance 33:8 35:22 47:8

comprehensive 45:10

Compstat 49:5

computers 40:19

concern 20:14 23:18 31:2 44:20

concerned 20:14,18 45:7

concerns 41:22 42:19

concluded 28:11

conditions 30:4,5

conference 42:8

confidence 58:10

confiscated 19:22

connect 28:10

Connection 18:14

consideration 29:23

consist 45:15

conspiracy 5:18

conspired 5:18

contact 17:1 38:19

contacted 22:6 36:7

continue 5:6 8:10 15:8 18:9

47:13

continued 2:22 34:5

continues 19:3

continuing 31:22

contract 52:17 56:4

contracts 39:21

Control 48:15

controls 54:13

controversial 54:2

convictions 43:19

cooperation 63:11

copies 53:8

copy 18:6 38:21 52:9 55:5,6

corporations 26:24

correct 39:8 40:25 57:18

corrected 7:22

correctly 22:10

correspondence 3:22 4:5

correspondences 3:20

corrupt 22:16

corruption 5:25 22:13

cost 35:14,18 37:2,21 39:22,

24 40:9,20 41:4

costs 32:14 38:16 39:22 41:8

council 7:16 13:4,20 54:7

56:6,7,14 60:7 61:6

Councilman 11:24

country 29:13

couple 15:14 18:10 24:13

court 27:14 53:18.24

cover 2:19 5:18

Craig 40:21 42:5

create 61:25

crime 5:18 6:13 15:5,6 16:6 17:1 32:2,4,23,24 33:4,14,22 34:24 36:10 40:4,9,17,20

41:19 42:15 43:12 46:9 48:15

crimes 35:6 52:11,12,13 54:16

62:19

criminal 26:12,13

critical 35:2 46:15

crowd 24:17

crucial 31:1,9

current 11:17 48:23

customer 47:5

customers 49:17,18

cut 8:9 39:9

cuts 54:24

D

daily 42:1,17

Dallas 6:9,15 41:20

Darryl 10:22 51:5 52:1

data 15:5 31:6 36:17,24 37:3,

4,9,14 39:1 43:21 52:10

54:20,21

date 15:11 52:22

dated 52:7

Davis 6:25 7:9,10,12 11:23

day 2:13,16 8:15 15:8 35:12

57:5,22 58:4 daycares 34:17

days 4:18 22:17 35:1 39:1,3

DC 14:7,10,13,19,22,24 17:16, 20 18:22 19:7,17,23 20:7,17,

20 24:6,11 59:13

DEA 18:12,13 19:23

deal 5:9 29:1

dealt 4:7

death 15:15,18

debate 60:3

decades 9:17

deceased 15:19

December 25:18 57:19

decision 53:25

decisions 31:1,10

dedicated 33:2

deliberated 58:11

demanded 16:19

department 6:4,6,7 10:2 12:21 15:4 16:5 17:4 20:23 21:23 22:7,11 23:1,8 27:7 30:21 31:2.24 32:6 34:1 37:23 39:19

43:13 46:9,21 49:14 59:16

62:2

department's 22:9 55:6

departments 36:7

depth 5:24

Deputy 14:13,25 22:23,24

48:18 53:10 59:7

design 55:11

designed 54:15

desires 31:12 desiring 21:9

.

destroy 19:9

destroys 19:11,16

destruction 19:24

destructive 24:8

detail 52:21

details 52:19

detection 32:11 51:8

detective 14:14 15:1 22:7

detectives 15:22,25 35:4

deterrence 32:11

deterrent 45:22 46:6

Detroit 3:9,17,24 4:22 5:24 6:16 8:22 9:18,19 12:5,7,8,10, 12,25 16:4,7 17:2,7 20:13,19, 24 21:23 22:7,11,17 23:1,3,8, 19 25:14 33:24,25 34:12,18 36:9,14 37:22 38:14,18 41:19, 22 54:24 55:2 59:16,25 60:16, 18

Detroit's 19:1

Detroit-based 38:4,10,23

39:17

Detroiters 42:17

develop 52:25 55:3

devices 51:14

dilated 50:19

diligence 13:3

direct 32:24 33:1 34:25 47:8

49:16

directly 36:19

director 9:2 27:17,18 52:14

disabled 15:4

discussed 51:23

discusses 35:14

discussion 56:15,17,19 57:12, 13,14 59:6,20 60:4

dispatch 32:21

dispatched 15:17 16:10 47:17

disservice 13:5

distributing 19:13

district 8:14 10:13 12:13

29:16 42:2 44:9

districts 29:14

doc-u-sign 51:21

document 57:18

documents 62:5,6

door 25:21

doors 25:22

dots 34:13

doubled 41:21

downstairs 40:4 62:12

DPD 15:3 17:5,8,21,23 18:4,6, 11,22 19:1 22:1 27:4 32:19 40:6 41:12 51:10,12,14,15,24 52:7,9,10,19 53:1 54:13 57:25

DPOA 18:2

drag 24:13

drive 32:17

drive- 18:25

driveway 16:14

driving 16:22

drove 16:21

Drug 18:12,13

drugs 18:19

DSA 12:6,12

due 13:3 15:5

Duly 25:8,10

Durhal's 11:24

duties 40:11

duty 13:4

Ε

earlier 31:18 44:23

early 4:8

Eastside 19:1

echo 42:18 58:12

Ecorse 17:6

effect 45:22

efficiency 58:7

efficient 58:15

effort 7:15,20

Elected 11:15

election 29:12

email 52:5

emailed 51:9,12

employees 7:24

encourage 17:13 29:15 39:20

encouraged 52:3

end 31:13 42:11 52:22 57:20

ended 42:7

enforcement 18:14 30:4

enforcements 29:20,22

engagement 32:11

enhance 47:4,10 49:20

ensure 41:2 48:5

ensures 33:8

entered 16:15

entertains 63:2

entire 5:11 34:18

entitled 5:15

enumerated 31:14

Eric 4:14 5:23

evening 29:2,3

events 24:16

evidence 6:12

evil 6:8,15

excuse 12:23 15:24 21:13

34:6

excused 10:14,19

executive 2:14,15

exit 16:20

exited 16:15

expansion 12:16

expansions 12:14

expect 13:19 26:10

expensive 43:22

expired 18:17

exposed 15:21

extremely 54:17

Eye 50:18

eyes 50:19

F

face 9:19 15:20

facial 6:2,7,11,16

facilitate 17:9

facilities 42:6

fact 12:18 36:19 42:3 57:18

factor 46:6

falling 45:12

falsely 6:10,17

familiar 27:15 29:17

families 58:25

family 16:1,2,3 19:2 25:15

Father 2:12,17,21

favor 60:7 61:4 63:6

favorite 33:12

February 3:9,11,13,14,16 25:18,19 51:23 53:3

federal 22:12

feedback 44:7,15 46:1 47:2, 12,18 48:4,24 49:1,2,16 50:1

51:10,12

feel 23:7 26:23 28:7 43:13

45:25

feelings 46:2

fees 35:19

felonies 54:19 55:12.14.15

felony 54:19

felt 55:17

fester 6:15

fewer 41:21

fierce 59:1

figure 4:20

figured 30:22

fill 6:21 48:2

filter 33:2

final 44:18

financial 5:5

find 8:4 19:18 24:1 27:21 30:3

32:8 57:5

fine 22:19 50:22

fingerprinting 51:13

firstly 12:13

fit 59:24

flagged 32:21

flashing 32:17 46:7,12

floor 60:22

Florida 53:21

focus 40:10

focused 40:13

folks 49:22,24

follow 5:6 19:21 20:23 22:2,10

23:13 38:13 48:5,10 49:7

footage 17:10,21

football 24:9

footprints 15:22

forced 13:13 26:22,23

forgot 12:10

forthcoming 3:12

fortunate 5:4

forward 2:7 3:4 11:2 13:18 31:21 35:13 50:8 57:22 60:7

forwarding 54:7 56:5

Foster 28:23,24 29:2,4,7

found 15:22

framework 58:2

frankly 27:22

Fred 11:24

free 62:11

freeway 4:2 20:6 51:24 53:1,2, 11,12 54:1,6,12,18 56:13 57:19 58:24 59:9 60:6,16,18 61:5 62:20

freeways 20:24 52:11 54:24

55:2,21 58:20 59:2

friendly 42:14

friend 22:5

Friendship 42:10

front 36:22 42:8

fulfilling 17:25

Fulgenzi 31:25 32:1,10 33:18 34:11 36:21 37:18,20 38:11 39:3,8 40:8,22 41:13 42:22 45:14,19 46:5 47:7,24 48:9,11 50:10

full 13:20 48:9 57:20 58:9

full-hog 12:23

funded 59:15

funding 52:20

funds 52:21,22

funeral 58:21

funerals 55:21 future 58:14

G

gains 43:13

Gamble 10:21 19:7,8 36:16,17 37:1,7,11,17,25 38:3 46:24 47:14 48:6 49:9 50:5 61:18

game 23:21 24:15

gas 34:16 49:22

gather 24:17

gave 19:13

general 8:2 39:23

generate 54:12

generated 43:19 44:22 53:20

genius 4:21

gentleman 25:11 41:17

gentlemen 53:17

gift 5:6

Gilmer-hill 12:11

girl 9:6

give 2:24 25:2 26:15 27:17,19 48:10 49:2 59:8

glad 6:15

gleaned 36:20

glory 2:24

good 2:2 3:7 5:22 7:10 8:15 11:17 12:8 14:7,10,24 21:21 24:23 29:2,3,8 31:25 46:4 47:5 48:14

Gorman 22:19

government 53:14

governor 59:24

Grandville 16:11,23

graphs 45:8

grateful 2:9 7:6

great 4:17 7:5

greater 7:14,20

green 23:4 46:7

Greenlight 31:23 32:3,13,20, 22 33:7,14,19,23 34:13,15,20 35:1,11,14 36:6,12,20 37:23 38:12,15 39:5 40:6,10,12,14 41:6,20,23 42:3,5,6,7,9,12,15, 20,25 43:11,21 44:10,23 45:22 46:19 47:3,10 48:3,17, 21 49:25

grievance 23:11

Grosse 54:25

groups 13:10 57:1

grow 47:13

guess 57:13 60:25

guest 30:14

guide 33:1

gun 16:19

gunshot 51:8

guys 4:15 5:13,18 29:8,10 30:21,25 31:8 45:25 47:1

Н

hand 2:21

handgun 16:18

handheld 14:18 25:3

handle 20:10 21:8 34:10

handling 23:12

happen 62:1

happened 20:24 27:24 42:7

49:2 54:18 58:19

happening 23:20 24:16 33:16

happy 27:23 43:1,24

harassed 62:20

hard 22:13

Hayes 11:20 22:23 52:3,15

53:10

he'll 10:23 34:10

headquarters 3:10,18 18:15

health-related 15:10

hear 21:19 24:11 30:7 50:8

57:1,4,7

heard 7:10 12:8 30:7,13

hearing 11:4,8,13 21:5 26:7 50:7 52:17 60:4 61:3 63:1

heart 5:23 28:17

Heavenly 2:12

held 3:17 18:22 51:3

helpful 44:8,15

Hernandez 10:20 18:21

high 17:6 35:8 42:15 54:19

higher 35:7,18

highlighted 6:5

highway 20:10

history 9:19

hit 24:3

Hold 21:15 25:2

holding 35:6

home 15:5

homes 42:13

homicide 15:23

homicides 15:7 41:21

honor 2:24

Honorable 31:25

honored 18:18

hoodie 15:20

hope 58:7

hospital 9:3

hosting 3:11

hour 25:9

hours 31:16

house 25:21 26:24

housing 9:2

How's 14:22

human 29:9,11

ı

idea 13:17

illegal 5:10

image 8:12 33:18

images 33:11

immediately 32:25 35:3

immigration 29:13

impact 14:2,4,5 34:1 36:13

37:12

importance 16:8

important 29:10 50:2 55:18

57:24

impounded 22:1 24:14

impoverished 29:21,25

impression 41:25

improper 57:11

improve 8:12,13 48:3

improvement 42:23

in-coming 3:20

incidences 24:8

incident 4:23 16:8,24 17:11

35:2 47:21

incidents 15:14 20:5 24:12,13

46:15 60:17 62:17

included 51:19

incoming 4:4 50:12

increase 32:11

increased 34:4

individual 2:5

indoors 54:2

indulgence 62:23

industrial 45:16

information 16:1,5 17:1,5,8 18:3 20:8,11 27:21 31:6 33:5 35:4 36:19,21,23 38:19,20

40:24 43:25 47:18 50:4 51:14

informative 44:8

initially 48:18 54:15

initiated 40:21

injured 15:3 16:24

injury 15:5

input 13:15

insane 26:11

inside 19:16 49:22

inspector 8:2 25:17

inspectors 27:6,16

installation 62:2

Institute 41:18 50:18 57:2

instituted 48:25

institutional 6:4

integrity 35:22

Intelligence 32:2

intentions 42:24

interest 38:7

interested 43:22 55:15

interface 28:4

internal 42:24

introduction 10:6 11:14

introductions 12:1

intrusion 53:14

investigate 16:11

investigating 23:5 59:10

investigation 15:15,18,25

19:3 27:9 51:17

investigations 35:5,9

Investigator 11:18,19 23:10

investment 33:13,25

invite 13:9 52:14 62:13

invocation 2:8 3:2

involved 51:11 59:24 62:17

involvement 39:20

involving 17:10,11,21 55:21

Irvin 2:10

IRVING 2:12

issue 5:10 29:13 44:8 53:12

54:21

issued 18:2 27:15

issues 13:8 22:14 23:2,7 31:7

item 40:5,25

items 30:24

J

Jahdantee 21:14,17,18

January 2:3 11:3,6,8,11 15:16

16:9 18:13 51:4 57:20

Jasmine 11:21

Jeep 16:16,22

Jesus 10:20

Jesus' 2:25

job 5:15 10:1 19:14

join 46:18

joined 2:9 13:24 21:4

joker 9:21

Jonya 11:20

Juan 17:11

judge 27:14

July 23:24

June 23:24 25:19

junk 45:15

justice 19:4 41:18 49:14

justify 37:2 Juwan 17:22

Κ

keeping 18:16 54:20

Keniesha 9:14

key 51:3

kids 22:6 25:22

killed 9:8 17:7 18:23,25 62:19

killer 19:4

Kilpatrick 22:17

kind 9:22 45:6 55:1

kindly 50:5

kindness 28:17

kit 22:3,7 23:12

knew 5:25

knowledge 59:13,14,17

Kresge 50:18

Kwame 22:17

L

Labelle 11:19 17:23

ladies 53:17

Ladon 11:23

lady 30:7

Landbank 25:21

Language 11:22

lastly 30:7

late 47:25

Latrell 18:25

laughed 7:23

launched 36:12

law 27:14

Lawrence 9:9,11

lawsuits 31:4 44:22

layered 43:11

Leaders 11:16

leadership 18:18

lease 32:16 35:15,16

leasing 40:1 41:11

left 16:4

leg 23:23

legitimate 9:8

length 31:17

lengthy 31:16

lethal 6:3

letter 18:2

level 35:8 54:19

liberties 13:8

Liberty 10:10 57:1 61:14

license 12:14,15 31:5 41:7

Lieutenant 22:19

life 4:18 5:12 58:21

lifelong 12:12

lift 2:13,14,17,23

light 12:18 32:18 46:7,13

lighting 32:16 35:19

lightning 38:7

Linda 10:12,13 51:5,7 52:1,6

53:4

lines 8:14

linger 30:1

Lions 23:20

liauor 34:16

Lisa 10:17 13:24

Lisonya 11:19

list 52:8

listed 3:24,25

listening 31:9

litigation 18:6

live 7:15,16 30:4 35:11

lives 53:14

local 57:2

location 3:12 16:4,12,21 32:21,22 33:2 34:14 35:1

38:13 46:15,16 49:3

locations 32:20 33:7 34:3,15, 23 35:25 36:2,3 43:4,6 45:6, 15,16 46:8,19,23 49:4

log 41:24 42:1,14

long 25:23 54:21

Longworth 15:17

looked 19:9

lost 12:3

lot 22:13 23:7 29:5,7 30:9 38:6

41:5,6 42:12 54:8

lots 45:15

louder 30:12

love 38:20

lower 15:8

LPRS 51:25 53:1,2

lying 15:20

M

Maddox 21:17 23:17,18

made 9:5,6 17:3 18:8 20:6,25 23:11 26:11 36:18,19 37:15 52:22 58:17 59:3 60:14,19

magnify 30:8

main 31:7

maintain 35:22 58:1

make 7:20 8:6,9 15:15 17:4 18:1 21:9 30:12 31:1,9 37:15, 20 45:4 47:11,21 48:1 54:17

55:5 57:13 62:3



making 42:25 43:4

male 15:19 16:1,17

malfeasance 21:22 22:8

mama 9:8

man 6:10 9:4,6,8

managed 59:16

manager 47:8

manifest 30:12

Manoogian 22:18

manor 62:20

Mansion 22:18

March 7:25

Maria 44:14

Marie 11:24

mask 16:18

match 30:4

matter 46:2

Matthew 32:1

Mayor 2:14 27:18

Mayor's 27:20 52:20

Mccarty 24:22,24 25:14 27:3,6

28:6,8,12

Meadows 42:10

measures 24:10

media 4:23

medication 19:16

medications 18:17

meet 3:14,16 38:18

meeting 2:4,19 3:8,10,13,14,

15 4:8 11:7 28:11 44:6,16 48:23 51:3,24 52:7,23 53:3,9,

17 55:4 56:22,24 58:4,9 62:13

63:10,13

meetings 3:17 7:15,16,17,18 21:25 31:13,16 42:24 48:21,

22 52:15 58:13 62:10

Melanie 9:10

member 12:11 15:4 16:3

50:20

members 13:9,10,16 15:12

18:4

mental 15:10

message 31:7

met 33:9

Metro 12:6,7,8,10,12 49:15

Miami 53:21

Miami-dade 36:11,12

mic 14:9.17 21:16 28:25

Michigan 17:6 20:9 25:15

54:23 59:11,23

Microphone 25:1 29:6

million 52:18 54:23 57:25 58:1

59:25

mind 24:6

Mines 18:25

Mini 9:20

minimum 35:16 36:1,2

Minister 4:14 5:21,22

minor 55:13

minorities 29:18

minority- 39:18

minority-based 39:20

minute 31:24

minutes 11:6,8,11,12,13

misdemeanors 62:21

mispronouncing 21:13

missing 16:1

mistake 7:22

Mobile 51:13

model 36:6,14

moment 3:2 57:6

monitoring 32:20 59:10

month 3:13 18:24 29:10 35:17

37:10

monthly 3:12

months 4:20 5:7 7:23 37:11,

14 48:22 62:2

Moore 10:18

morning 33:23 46:23

motion 52:23,24 56:3,12 57:14 60:3,5,9,13,21,23,25

61:4,21 63:2,10

motorized 24:1

move 2:7 3:3 9:4 10:4 11:2,5

13:18 14:2 21:6 31:22 33:21

50:14 57:22,24 59:1

moved 57:10 63:3

movement 25:3

moving 30:25

MPOS 22:18

MSP 52:10,14

multi-prone 32:10

multiple 25:19

murder 9:14

murdered 23:6 49:23

Ν

Nakia 17:10

narcotics 18:20

narrower 62:3,4

national 6:5 41:18

nature 42:1 58:25

neglected 30:2

neighbor's 26:2

Neighborhood 18:15

neighborhoods 34:22

neighbors 25:25



news 3:23,24 6:16

newspaper 6:5

night 18:22

NIJ 42:19

Nokia 30:15,18,20

non-fatal 15:7

non-greenlight 46:16

note 23:11

noted 12:2 13:23 25:8,10 31:12

notes 17:17 27:7

notified 15:24

noting 2:4 3:3

November 30:23

NPOS 18:18 43:5

number 8:10,13,24 20:15 27:20 34:4 36:1 39:17,18 42:2 52:11 53:23 60:16

numbers 15:9 20:15 26:3 46:22 59:3

numerous 36:7

O

objecting 18:3

objection 11:4,5,7,8,12,13

observed 15:19 16:16

occasions 24:17

occur 31:17 32:22 35:2

occurred 4:23 6:13 16:9 20:5

47:21 58:2 60:16,17

occurring 33:4

October 18:19 48:25

odd 22:3

offense 26:8,9,10

offering 5:5

office 11:24,25 27:20 41:17

52:20 56:23 57:21

officer 17:22 19:8 22:9 26:6,

17 40:13 51:11

officers 2:15,16 4:22 5:11,12 14:1 15:3,16,18,21 16:10,12 18:16,23 19:1 26:14,16 27:4, 12 29:16 33:1 34:21 40:3 41:23,25 42:13 43:4,5 46:11

Officials 11:15

OIG 51:16

on-duty 15:5

ongoing 8:5 18:1

online 62:6

open 13:14 62:11

operate 46:18

operations 41:12

opiates 19:9,10

opinion 5:15 53:19,20 62:4

opportunity 21:10

oppose 13:20

opposed 63:9

opposition 12:14

option 35:15

order 60:20

organizations 49:16 57:1,3

original 33:20

originally 48:16

outright 35:18

outstanding 51:6,8

overcorrect 12:20

overdose-related 15:13

Overhaul 11:24

oversight 10:1 13:3 22:12

owned 39:7

owner 32:14,15 35:15 43:1

46:17

owners 32:5 47:9

owns 26:25

Ρ

package 4:1

packet 32:8

paid 26:12 30:2

pandemic 53:13

Panel 30:8,13

paper 47:14

park 23:22

parking 45:15

part 22:9 24:5 38:15 39:4

43:11,14,20

participated 18:11

participating 4:22

partner 45:6,24

partners 18:13 34:12 45:12

partnership 32:5,14 34:5 43:2

46:8,12,20 59:23

parts 46:5

party 22:18

passed 51:20

passes 61:21 63:10

passionately 55:20

past 8:9 13:9,13 18:11 22:4,5 44:22

patrol 4:24,25 29:12

patrols 34:24

pay 7:24 26:5 30:1 40:3 57:25

paying 34:22 37:23

people 4:12,21 5:2,4 7:21 8:7, 13,18 29:17,25 30:21 31:9 35:5 53:15

period 10:2 25:25 29:18 37:10

person 4:13 8:25 16:3,19



personal 53:14

27:22 49:22 56:24

personally 58:20

personnel 40:19

pertaining 18:4

phone 16:2 49:11

picture 5:1

pictures 28:8

piece 40:12 46:14

pills 19:15,22

place 17:12 20:22 24:10,15,18

37:6

place-based 32:3

places 30:1

plan 24:15,18 49:11

planned 24:16

plans 13:19

plate 12:15 31:5 41:7

played 24:7

playing 9:22

PM 2:3 3:9,11,15,16 25:9 53:4

pockets 42:16

podium 41:17

point 12:21 31:7 49:8

Pointe 55:1

pointed 16:19 53:16

Pokémon 5:3

police 2:4 4:22 5:8,11 6:4,6 7:13,22 8:23 9:1,25 10:2 11:15 12:21 14:1,6 15:2 16:4 18:15 20:9 21:23 22:7,9,11 23:1,8 27:11 28:15 30:20 32:5 33:25 37:22 40:13 44:12 46:8, 20 51:2 59:11,16,23

policies 13:2 29:23 62:7

policing 59:10

policy 3:13 50:15,16 51:2,23 52:7,25 53:2 54:11,12,22 55:3,5,10 56:9,10,12,21,24 58:10 60:3,5 61:25 62:7

political 9:22

population 41:21

pose 55:16

positioned 31:13

positive 18:10 34:1 44:9

post 13:7 57:2

potential 35:10

pound 5:7

pounds 18:20

poverty 29:19

Powerpoint 4:2 18:7 51:25

practices 8:9,11

praise 2:25

pray 2:21,22

Precinct 3:11 18:18 22:9,15,

16,19,21 44:6

Precinct's 23:12

prepared 54:4

preposterous 57:6

prescription 18:19

presence 42:13

present 10:9,11,13,16 18:15

56:22,24

presentation 18:7,12 31:23,24

56:20 57:4,7

presented 52:2 57:20

press 42:8

Pressley 2:2 3:1,19 4:6 5:20 6:19 7:1,5,8,11 8:16,19 10:3, 8,24 11:1 12:2,7,9 13:22 14:5, 8,11,16,21,23 17:18 19:6,21, 25 20:21 21:3,15,18,20 23:10, 16 24:5,19,23 25:2,5,8,10,13 27:2,4,8,11 28:10,13,16,19,

22,24 29:3 30:16,19 31:11 32:7 33:15 34:9 36:15 37:5,8, 13,19,24 38:2,6,21 39:14,25 41:1,9,14 43:8,16 44:2,4,17, 19,25 45:17,20 48:11 50:6,11, 22 53:5 55:23,25 56:3,11,18 57:16 58:5 59:5,20 60:2,11,20 61:2,10,12,21,23 62:14,25 63:4,6,9

pretty 19:14 46:25

prevention 32:4

previous 12:16 19:13 52:7

prey 5:4

prices 41:11

prior 44:24 58:4

priority 33:7 34:20 46:11

privacy 53:19,25

proactively 33:2,4

problematic 7:19

problems 26:21 33:6

procedures 12:18

process 13:14 18:1 19:24 35:12 38:8 44:16 47:11

processes 38:22 49:3

procurement 52:18 62:1

produces 35:8

product 19:20 49:20

productive 2:19

Professor 6:23,24 7:1,7

PROFFESOR 7:3

program 15:12 33:9 35:13,22 36:4,6,8 37:3 47:8,12,13 48:17

progress 36:18

progression 54:6

project 32:2,3,13,20,22 33:6, 14,19,23 34:13,15,20,25 35:14 36:6,12,20 37:23 38:12, 15 39:5 40:6,10,12,14 41:20,



23 42:3,20,25 43:10,20 44:22 45:22 46:18 47:10 48:3,17,21 49:25 59:15 60:6 61:5

projects 42:20 43:23 56:14

prominent 57:3 **promise** 4:9 9:5,6

proof 37:3

properties 25:17

property 25:20,23 26:21,22,23

proposed 62:7

prosecutorial 22:4

protect 59:2 60:1

protecting 2:16

protocol 59:12

proud 36:5

provide 3:5 18:9 20:12 36:24 40:24 43:25 52:8,9,10,19

provided 17:21 46:3 51:7 52:15,20 53:10

prudent 49:10

public 3:9,17 4:8,10 7:13 12:4 13:15,16 21:8,9,11 24:20 25:7 28:19 29:1 30:25 31:13,15,17, 20 33:16 34:8 52:3,4,17 53:19,25 54:1 55:4 62:16

pull 14:8 16:16 32:25 35:3

pulled 5:8

pulls 55:10

purchase 35:17 40:2

purchasing 41:11

purpose 55:11

pushing 22:12

put 16:3 19:10,14 24:10 30:11 49:3 53:22 55:8,9

putting 62:8

Q

quadruple 59:3

quality 35:8

Quantez 10:8

question 20:3,22 38:5 39:18 41:10,17 44:18 45:5 46:4,25

48:13 52:6

questionable 8:9,11

questions 19:7 21:5 36:15 44:2 45:2 50:6,8 60:2

quickly 53:7

quorum 2:5 3:3 10:4,25 11:2 12:3 13:23 21:7

R

racing 24:13

racism 6:4

radio 33:5

rage 54:18

raise 44:21

raised 52:6

rallied 46:16

Randolph 4:24

rape 22:3,7 23:12

raped 6:12 22:5

rate 35:7

reach 42:17

reaching 43:3

react 24:17

read 34:7 50:20 55:4

readdress 31:8

reader 12:15

readers 31:5 41:7

readily 20:11

ready 4:15

reaffirmed 53:24

real 6:8 40:22 43:22

Real-time 32:23,24 33:14,22 34:24 36:9 40:4,9,17,20 46:9

reason 5:4 22:1,2 54:14

received 15:25 16:2 44:23

52:8,10,12 56:20

receiving 9:3 46:11

recently 7:21 18:2 36:12

recognition 6:2,8,11,17

recognize 58:9

recommend 54:4

recommendation 8:2,5 51:17

58:12,18 59:4

recommended 51:19

record 20:22 21:3 30:10 46:2

records 8:6

recovered 24:14

recovering 15:4

recreation 42:4

recruiting 29:15

recruitment 42:25

red 16:14

redo 8:14

reducing 42:15

reduction 32:4 41:19 43:12

reelected 8:14

refine 56:9,10

reflect 21:3

regard 49:25

regular 3:8 10:5

regulate 53:1

reiterate 13:17

relates 7:24

relation 18:23

release 18:3

remaining 18:10

remarkable 33:25

remind 30:22 61:24

removal 28:2

remove 21:16

report 3:22 4:1,4 13:25 14:2,4, 6 15:2 16:11 19:5 21:6 23:14 47:15,16,25 48:7,9 50:7,12, 15,21 51:24 53:8,9,11 54:5,8 55:6 56:6,13 60:6 61:5

reports 6:2 30:11 49:13

represent 34:13

Representatives 11:15

representing 14:14

request 9:9 17:5,21 18:1,8 20:23 37:15 38:22 51:14,21 52:7,8,10,19 57:19 60:13

requested 17:9 51:9

requesting 60:14,15

requests 17:3,24 18:10 51:6,

require 56:14

required 51:22

requirement 32:16,18 35:20

research 37:8 49:12

residence 16:15

resident 12:12 25:14

residential 45:11

residents 8:21 18:16 20:13

42:12

resign 9:24

resolution 18:5

respond 27:10 46:10 48:13

responded 15:24 58:3

responding 33:1 40:14

response 33:7 34:21 47:22 51:10,13,16 52:15

responses 45:3 48:10 50:9

responsibilities 40:11

responsibility 32:19

restricts 55:10

result 43:20 53:20

results 12:20

resume 21:11

retail 45:11

return 12:3 13:24

review 31:19 62:5

reviewed 51:25 52:5,6

Rewards 16:7 17:2

Ricardo 10:18

rid 9:10

riding 24:2

rights 13:10 31:3

risk 32:3

river 23:24 42:10

road 54:25

robbery 54:17

Robichaud 6:23,24 7:2,3,7

roles 32:13

roll 61:8,10

rolled 48:19

rolling 56:8

room 5:21 8:17 28:3 40:17

42:23

Roy 10:21

rubber 12:16 13:18 30:24

Ruebin 4:14 5:21 8:16,21

run 32:21 46:11

running 8:25 9:2

Russell 48:14,15 50:3

S

Sacred 5:23

sad 16:2

safe 18:17 46:19

safety 2:22 3:9,17 23:19

sale 26:22

satisfied 47:20

scares 23:1

scene 15:18,23,24

scheduled 3:13 17:8,12 53:3

school 17:6

scooters 23:25

screens 40:18

search 62:12

seat 5:13

Secretary 10:5 45:1

section 15:23

sections 48:24

segments 4:10

selecting 38:9

send 48:4 52:4 60:13 61:1

sending 61:6

senior 17:6 42:2,4,13

sense 45:7,9

sensitivity 52:21

September 23:25

Sergeant 17:11

series 27:25

serve 29:17

serves 13:6

service 7:13 15:10,11,14 40:15 46:3 47:5,6,20



services 45:12 49:21 **session** 11:9,11,12

set 38:12 41:11

sex 30:9

share 38:8,20 42:21 45:3 52:4,

sharing 54:5

Sharnita 4:13

shooting 18:24 19:1 20:5 51:11 54:18

shootings 15:7 20:4,10,24,25 53:11,12 55:21 60:16,18

short 2:5 16:14

shot 62:19

show 19:2 30:5,6

showing 26:6

shows 34:2,12 35:9

side 32:19

sidewalk 24:2

sign 11:21 42:1

signage 32:18 35:20 38:8

signature 51:21

signatures 51:22

signed 41:23

significant 13:7 15:14 41:19 43:13

signify 60:8 61:6 63:7

signing 41:24 42:14

silence 6:1

silenced 23:2

Silverado 16:14

Sincerely 53:4

sir 3:7,21 6:20 9:14,15 20:8,17 24:12,18,21 44:3 50:3 59:13

sitting 5:14

situation 5:5,12,16,17 9:23

49:24

situations 62:22

size 41:21

ski 16:18

skims 23:8

slide 32:2,12 33:10 34:2,5,7,9,

11,18 35:9,13

slides 33:11,16 34:6

Sloan 11:19 14:7,10,13,14,19, 22,24,25 17:16,20 18:22 19:7, 17,23 20:7,17,20 24:6,11

48:18 59:7,13

small 31:7

Smartsheet 48:25 49:1

Smith 10:10 21:14,17,18,19,

21 58:23 61:14

snuffed 58:21

social 4:23

Sonia 48:15

sort 12:23 43:23

sorts 13:12 40:15

sought 17:23

sound 26:18

sounds 19:19 60:22

source 52:19

Southfield 58:24

speak 22:22 23:2 44:7 46:22

52:14 55:19,22

speaker 6:23 24:21

speakers 6:22

speaking 23:19

speaks 55:23

special 24:9 34:21,22 42:23

43:2,3 49:4

specific 22:19

specifically 31:4 40:24 49:1

specification 4:1 51:24 56:13 60:6 61:5

specifications 54:5 55:6 56:5

spelled 54:22

spending 52:22

spoke 16:12 55:19

spread 34:17

spreads 6:9

Square 4:25

staff 3:5 11:14 32:23 33:2 35:2

stalking 4:21

stamp 13:19

stamped 12:17

stamping 30:24

stand 9:4,11,13,15,21 59:4

standards 33:9 38:12,19

standing 58:15

Stark 52:20

start 7:17,18 21:7 26:20 35:4

42:10

started 5:2 16:13 33:13,19

48:17 51:18

starting 25:18 34:3

starts 53:11

State 6:13 11:25 20:9 33:24

54:23 59:11,15,23

stated 16:13,17 39:22

States 36:7,8 53:18

station 34:16 49:22

stats 41:20

status 51:6

Stephanie 11:18,22 17:23

steps 13:8

stood 9:7

stop 9:7 30:23



Stoppers 16:6 17:1

stopping 34:22 43:5

storage 35:1,19 39:4

stored 31:6 39:1

stores 34:16

stories 18:11

strategies 43:14 48:15

strategy 32:4

street 40:13

strive 8:11

strong 58:17

stuff 4:23 55:1

Subcommittee 56:21

submit 51:15

submitted 10:14,18 18:6

51:15,22

success 36:14 43:1 46:21

suggest 27:19 44:5

Sunday 16:9

Supervising 11:19

supervisors 26:14

support 19:2 55:12

supposed 23:22 54:19

Supreme 53:18

surprise 6:10 58:3

surveillance 41:5 53:16,21

survey 47:1,16 48:1,18 49:6

surveyed 45:24

suspect 16:20

suspects 16:22

suspended 7:24

suspicious 33:4

SUVS 23:25

Sy 11:22

symbolizing 46:12

system 12:15 51:9 54:6 58:1

T

tab 30:1 32:8

Takaris 30:15,17

Takeback 18:12

takes 9:20

taking 8:1 15:12 25:23 36:10

talk 21:22 22:3 24:24 27:19

43:4 45:21 58:19

talked 26:13

talking 9:6 34:8 40:9 46:14

Tamara 10:10 23:4

tasks 40:11

taxes 26:13

taxpayers 8:22

Taylor 11:21

team 2:14 33:8 47:8

team's 24:9

technologies 41:6 44:10

technology 6:2,8,11,17 31:23

43:23

terms 45:25 46:2,25 59:9

terrible 22:20,22 28:2,7 49:24

Texas 6:9,15 41:20

Thankfully 16:24

That's 38:4

Theresa 11:20

thing 22:4 29:4,18 57:7

things 8:25 21:21 23:21 26:3 29:9,14 30:2,10 42:1 48:16

49:5 54:7,22 57:12 58:25

62:18,21

thoughts 47:3

threat 55:16

threatened 26:17,18,19

threw 26:7,9

Thursday 2:3 3:10

ticket 24:1 25:24 28:1,15

tickets 25:16,20,25 26:1,7,10, 21 27:5,15,25 28:5 29:20,22,

25

time 8:6 12:19 13:2 14:3 16:15 17:15 21:24 23:9 25:23 26:15, 16 27:2 31:20 35:10,11 36:11,

24 42:5 47:22 48:20 52:21

58:14 63:11

timeframe 4:10 36:22 37:6

timely 45:2

times 6:12 8:24 33:9 49:15

Timothy 52:20

today 2:9,15,18,23 3:5,23 9:24 12:13 13:4,19 14:15 15:2,3 33:21,22 42:18 44:24 48:18

53:9 54:4 60:15,25

told 9:13,15,19 26:12

tomorrow 17:13

tool 6:3 43:11

touched 34:19

Towers 42:10

towing 8:25 9:2 21:23 22:14

23:2

traffic 62:16,18,21

trafficking 29:9,11

training 51:17

transcript 26:5,6

Transit 5:8

transparent 13:14

trapped 49:22

treated 26:12,13

tripled 53:12

troubling 7:25 27:25

truck 9:2

Tuesday 3:14,16 18:12 62:10

Tuesday's 56:20

turn 14:11

turned 19:23

TV 7:15 16:7 17:2

type 27:15 34:14 44:15 45:21, 23 62:16,18,21,22

tyranny 58:19

Tyrone 11:25

U

Ultimately 29:24

unacceptable 26:19

unclear 23:20

Unclear15:04 43:7

understand 7:18 40:16 49:10, 13.14 50:3

understood 20:20 46:25

Underwood 4:12,16 6:20 8:18 11:20,21 12:5 21:12,17 24:21 28:21,23 30:14 40:23 41:2 43:9,24

Unit 32:2

United 36:7,8 53:17

unknown 16:2

unnecessary 18:5

unprepared 36:24

unsafe 25:22

unused 18:17,20

up-to-date 49:6

update 15:2 52:8

updated 51:19

updates 17:5 18:9 23:6 51:3,7

upside 4:18

upstairs 40:5

urgency 59:1

utilizing 19:19

٧

valid 9:9

vehicle 16:13,15,19,20,21

21:25

vehicles 5:9 24:1,14

vendor 38:18

vendors 35:21,23 38:3,4,9,10, 11,14,17,23 39:17,19,21

48:23 49:2,17

Vice 8:7,8,23 10:9 31:19 44:3, 4,5,14 59:6,7,18 61:13

victim 15:20 16:13,16,20

video 11:23 17:10,11,21,22

32:25 34:25 35:1,3,8 39:3,5,8,

10,11 46:11

videos 17:9

view 35:3

viewing 17:9,12

vigil 18:22,24

vigils 58:22,24

violating 8:24

violation 12:17 27:7

violations 31:3

violent 15:6 55:15 62:19

VIPS 11:23

virtual 34:24

visit 46:13,20 50:18

vitally 50:2

voice 12:14 30:8,12

volume 46:22

vote 31:8 52:23 57:5 61:8,10,

20

voted 56:12

voters 30:22

votes 61:20

voting 56:1

W

wall 12:23

Wallace 17:10

wanted 26:15 30:9

warehouse 45:16

Warfield 11:18

warmers 5:14

Warren 16:23 42:11

waste 28:2

ways 29:11 30:3

weapons 15:22

wearing 15:19 16:17

Wednesday 15:16

week 5:7 6:4 11:10 18:8,11

weekend 24:10

weeks 4:23

weigh 13:11 60:15

wet 51:22

White 9:10

William 6:25 7:8

Williams 4:14,15,17

Willie 8:3 9:5,16 10:9,16 51:6

52:2

win 24:9

window 5:1

withdrawn 28:5

wonderful 19:20

wondering 19:11

Woods 10:22 21:4 45:20,21 50:20,23 51:1,5 52:1,22 55:19 58:5,16,17 59:21,22 61:9,19

62:14,15 63:5

word 2:8

words 3:2 42:18

work 19:14 23:21 27:16 29:5,7 49:25 57:7,8

working 15:8 17:25 18:4 19:3 33:17 35:5 37:3 49:11,19

works 39:6

world 53:16

worth 31:16 37:14

Wow 18:21

wrapped 15:19

writing 20:22 27:4,7 37:16

wrongfully 6:7

wrote 53:18

WXYZ 3:25

Υ

Yakata 11:22

yard 26:2

yards 45:15

year 15:6,11,14 20:3,6 21:1 25:24 26:1 29:12 34:3,4 37:12,14 42:9 48:1 49:7,21 58:1 60:19

years 22:5,8 26:25 42:3 44:22 46:22 53:18

yield 23:8

young 6:10 30:7

Youth 18:14 30:7,13

you're 9:21

Ζ

zigity 49:23

Ziploc 19:15

zoom 2:9 6:20,22,23 8:18,20

12:10 21:10,13 28:23 29:1 30:14

